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THIS DOCUMENT iS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION, If you are n any doubt as to the aclion you should take,
you are recommended to seek your own independent financial advice from your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant, or

‘ other independent financial adviser authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2030 if you are in the United Kingdom
or, if not, from another appropriately authorised financial adviser. 1f you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares in
Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited, please forward this document as soon as possible to the purchaser or
transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was, or is being, effected, for delivery to the
purchaser or transferee.
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Finanicial Highlights o
o £84m debt facility extended to 2018 on attractive terms

Dividand of 4.433p gaid in respect of the 12 months te 31 December 2011

Quarterly dividend increased by 3% from quarter ended 30 September 2011

(=3

-]

e Dividend yield of 8.8% based on year end share price of 51.75p
o Net Asset Value per share decreased by 0.5% to 62.7p

Dbjective

To provide shareholders with an attractive level
of income together with the prospect of income
and capital growth.

Investment Policy

The Directors intend to achieve the investment
objective by investing in a diversified portfolic
of UK commercial properties. The majority of
the portfolio will be invested in direct holdings
within the three main secters of Retail, Office,
and Industrial, although the Company may also
invest in “other” commercial property such as
hotels, nursing homes and student housing.
investment in property development and
investment in co-ifvestment vehicies is
permitted (maximum 10% of the portfolia).

In order to manage risk, without compremising
flexibility, the Directors will apply the following
restrictions to the portfolio in normal market
conditions:

o No property will be greater by value than
15% of total assets.

¢ No tenant (excluding Government} will be
responsible for more than 20% of the
Company's rent rofl.

¢ The Board targets a loan to value (*LTV™)
ratio (calculated as borrowings less atl cash
as a proportion of property portfolio
valuation) of between 35% and 45%.
Borrowings as a percentage of gross assets
may not exceed 65%.

An analysis oFhow the portfolio was invested
as at 31 Decémber2011 is contained within the
Investment Manager's Report,

1 Ao aepnn-. and Firzncial Slalemeﬁts smndam Ut tovestmerts. Pmpeﬂy Mcome Trust Lmited |
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Financial Summary

'

1

Net Asset Value per share'
Published adjusted Net Asset Value per share?

Share Price

Value of total assets
Loan to valug?

Cash balance

Dividends per share*

Property income return

IPD property income monthly index’

Property total return (property only)

Property total return {property and cash only)
IPD property total return monthly index®

' Calcutated under International Financial Reporting
Standards. )

* Calcutated under international Financial Reporting

Standards, adjusted to deduct the dividend of 1,133p
per share In respect of the quarter ending 31 December
- 2011,

i1 Calculated as bank borrowings tess Fult cash balance asa *

percentage of the open market value of the property -
partfolio as at 31 December 2011,

31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010

63.9p 64.1p
62.7p 63.0p
51.75p &4.75p
£181.9m £177.4m
41.1% 40.8%
£17.8m £21.2m
4.433p 4.30p*
Year ended

31 Dec 2011

7.6%

6.2%

6.5%

5.9%

7-4%

% Change

-0.3%

-0.5% |

-20.1% .

+2.5%

+3.1%

Year ended
31 Dec 2010
7.1%

6.4%

16.4%
13.7%
13.3%

Dividends pald during the 12 months to 31 December

2011.%£2010 excludes a special dividend of 0,25p per
ordInary share paid in Febrizary 2010 relating to the year

31 December 2009.

* spurce: IPD quarterly version of monthly index funds

{excludes cash)

Annual Report and Financial Statements - Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited
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faul Orchard-Lisle
Chairman

As anticipated in my predecessor's statement
last year, performance in the property sector
during 2011 was driven by income, Standard
Life Investments Property Income Trust has
been successful in this regard, resuiting in an
uplift of 3.1% in the fully covered dividend paid
to investors in the year.

A number of initiatives have combined to make
this possible: we have worked with tenants to
help them meet their rental obligations, we
have sought to regear leases with short term
expiries and breaks, and we have improved the
quality 6fthe property portfolio by some sales
and purchases.

While this is good progress, the Company was
not immune from the general fluctuations in the
market, and its impact on our financial
performance is set out below.

STRATEGY

Qur focus is to provide investors with a
rewarding income return that produces a fully
covered dividend.

In 2011, our investment strategy was to protect
and where possible to enhance income. To do
so, we disposed of a small number of assets
that seemed uniikely to contribute positively in
the short to medium term and we acguired
others that offer immediate security of income
and the prospect of growth in years to come.
This repositioning of elements of the portfolio
inevitably meant that disposals completed
ahead of purchased: attimes left us with more
cashthan is éesirab%e arid indeed that wﬁs the
gesuiam,az yaar emi.
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As is set out both below and in the Investment
Manager's report, we have also sought certainty
and flexibility by rearranging the Company’s
principal debt, and | believe that the terms
agreed with RBS for so doing are greatly to
shareholders’ advantage, We also simplified the
capital structure by converting the zero dividend
preference shares into ordinary shares.

KEY ACTIVITY IN 2011

Two properties were sold during the year, for a
total of £14.4m, and a further property was sold
after the yeas end for £1.0m. Funds were
invested in three néw praperties during the
course of the year at a total cost of £22.2m and
t am pleased to say that all are showing signs
that they wil] perform at least in line with our
expectations.

On the occupational side, we, alongside many
other funds, suffered frem the unexpected
failure of Focus (DIY) Ltd. Of the two properties
let ta the company, one was relet immediately,
whilst the other is still vacant, but we have
achieved an improved planning consent.

At year end, our void rate was 5.1% versus the
IPD Monthly index rate of 10%. Much progress
has béen made with agreements with tenants
whose leases will expire or have break clauses
during 2012 and 2013, and | am pleased to
report that we have secured 78% of the rent at
risk over this period already, giving greater
certainty of future Income to the Company.
Preliminary discussions with.other tanants
suggest that we should be able to reach
satisfactory settlements on some of the major
tease'erpivies and breaks In 2044 during the
caurse of this yiar.
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Chairman's Statement (continued)

BORROWINGS

Since inception, the Company has had use of a
debt package of £84m, with £72m fixed with an
interest rate swap plus a margin until December
2013 and £12m at LIBOR plus a margin. The
Board and Investment Managers have for some
time held the view that given current market
sentiment, it was important to the future
management and growth of the portfolio to
secure longer term certainty. After securing
competitive bids, the Board accepted an offer
from RBS, more details of which are contained
in the Investment Manager's report. The legal
documentation was completed early in the New
Year, and | believe the result is to achieve the
level of certainty and flexibility needed to assist
the fund’s performance even though in the
short term we will need to work hard to cover
the anticipated dividend fully.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Net Asset Value

At the end of the year, the NAV per share was
62.7p, approximately 0.5% below that recorded
at 31 December 2G10. The movement compares
favourably with our peer group’s performance
but falls short of our ambitions. It is however
worth noting that a number of our properties
are subject to short term leases and while these
can generate opportunities for enhancement,
valuers tend to take a conservative approach to
their assessment.

Set out below is an analysis of the movement in
the NAV per share over the year.

Pence

pershare

neya

{ Published NAV as at

I}
, 31 December 2010 63.0 1000
I Decrease in vatuation of ;
+ praperty poitfolio (1.6) 2.5
. increase in interest rate :
' SWAP valuation 1.0 1.4
Other reserve movements 0.3 ) 0.4
Published NAV as at
31 December 2011 62,7 99.5

The net asset value is calculated under
International Financial Reporting Standards and
includes a provision for the payment of the
fourth interim dividend of 1.133p per share for
the quarter to 31 December 2011.

Earnings and Dividend

During 2011, the Company paid total dividends
of 4.433p per share. This represents a 3.1%
increase on dividends paid in 2010, excluding
the special dividend paid in February 2010
relating to 2009.

The Board increased the quarterly dividend by
3% to 1.133p per share with effect from the
guarter ended 30 September 2011. Dividends
payable in respect of the Company’s financial
year are shown in the table below.

2011 Pance
per shire

2010-Pence

per share

. Interim dividend paid in May for

quarter ending 31 March 1.100 1.100
+ Interim dividend paid in August
_for quarter ending 30 June 1.100 1.100
Interim dividend paid in November
for quarter ending 30 September  1.133 1.100
_Interim dividend paid in February .
far quarter ending 31 December 1.133 1.10¢
4,466 4.400

The Board has always targeted a high level of
dividend cover and continues to believe that
this is an appropriate discipline for the
Company to follow.

Loan to value ratio

At 31 December 2011 the LTV ratio (assuming
all cash placed with RBS as an offset to the loan
balance} was 41.1%. The Board is targeting the
LTV to remain in the range of 35% to 45%.
Under the terms of the new loan facility, the
maximum LTV covenant level is 65% for the first
five years of the facility, reducing to 60% for the
last two years.

Annual Report and Financial Statements - Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited 4
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Chairman’s Statemet (cortinuéd)

Share Pricé
At 31 December 2011 our share price was
51.75p, showing a discaunt'of17.5% to NAV,

and a fall of 20.1% on the price atthe end of
2010,

While disappointing in absolute terms, |
consider the price reflected market conditions
at that time.

At the time of our Board meeting on 13 March
2012, the share price had recovered ground
and stoad at 63.00p, an increase of 21.7%
since the year end.

Dividend Yield

At the share price of 63.00p, our dividend
gives investors a return of 7.2% which | believe
to be extremely attractive, not least when
contrasted with that obtainable from overnight
bank deposit rates of less than 1% and 10 year
government gilt yields of around 2%.

CORPORATE GOVERANCE

The membership of the Board remained
unchanged during the year. | accepted the
privilege of succeeding David Moore as
Chairman on 24 May 2011.

During the year we have, as usual, completed a
review of the performance of the Board {both
collectively and individually)., We also
established and held meetings of formally
constituted Nomination, Remuneration, and
Management Engagement Committees. The
Audit Committee continued its work under the
firm thairmanship of Susie Farnon. The
Valuation Committee completed reviews of our
Independent Valuer's reports and held
meetings with them to obtain a full
understanding of their approach to the
portfolio.

3 .
Lot

OUTLOOK

| believe the Company is well positioned to
malntaln an attractive income flow. There needs
to be sustained positive growth in the UK
economy before we can expect commercial
property values to rise materially. In the mean-
while, good fund management, astute estate
and asset management should produce
positive results.

| believe that during 2012 we will see some
worthwhile opportunities to invest further in the
market, but we will only make acquisitions
where we are happy with the stability and
prospects of an asset.

On a more aspirational note and longer term
basis, the Board holds the view that with the
help of our managers, it should seek the added
flexibility and enhanced market share that
would flow from the fund’s net assets
exceeding £100m, and we will seek attractive
opportunities.

Paui Orchard-Lisle CBE
Chairman
23 March 2012

I
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Investment Manager’s Report

Jason Baggaley
Fund Manager

UK Real Estate Market 2011

UK Real Estate recorded a credible performance
in 2011 given the wider market volatility and
on-going problems in the Euro zone. According
to the [PD Quarterly index, total annual returns
for UK real estate were 7.8% in 2011. This was
below Gilts at 15.6% but ahead of equities at
-3.5%. The majority of the return came from
income at 6.0% over the year with capital
growth broadly accounting far the remainder of
the retum. The Company had a higher income
return than the index at 7.6% reflecting its
purpose of providing shareholders an attractive
income return, A distinct theme over the year
was for the increase in capital values to
moderate each quarter. Capital values declined
in the last guarter of the year and this was most
pronounced for retail and industrial assets with
offices being more resilient mainly due to a

Direct Real Estate vs Other Asset Classes
Long Term Returns

stronger performance for Central London assets
over the year,

Liguidity was reasonable over the year with
approximately £33bn of transactions during
2011, broadly in line with the level of
transactions in 2010, Overseas investors were
particularly active accounting for around a third
of all transactions and just under two thirds of
all deals in Centrat Londan, The listed sector
and institutions were the other main purchasers
over the year with private property companies,
occupiers and banks the main sellers. Again
this year, the market was polarised between
prime and secondary assets and regionally split
between South and North. Prime assets held up
best over the year and have been viewed as a
“safe haven” given the wider market turmoil.

Real Estate Initial Yields V 5 Year Swaps,
Benchmark Bonds, Interbank Rates and
Equities Dividend Yield

% Retumn p.a.
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= AAA CORPDRATE BOND YIELDS ——EQUITIES (FT ALL SHARE] BIVIDEND YIELD
Saurce: Datastream

8 Direct Real Estate mm Gikts mm Equitfes - All

Sources: IPD, Datastream

Annual Report and Financial Statements - Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited 6
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trivestineit Manager's Repoit (coftiriuéd)

sricing for thesesectors i undmfandaiﬂv '
looking strétched and pricing in sectors that
have recoverad the most since the market
rallied, i.e. central London offices, could be
vulnerable if yiglds on other assets were'to rise
sharply. The markets view at present is that
comparable government bond yields are likely
to-remaln at low:levels for some time yet.

On a felative basis, UK commercial property
continues to look fairly valued. With initial
yields at 6.2% at end December and tonger
term Government bond yields at close to 2%,
the additional yield margin real estate offers
over Gavernment bonds remains close to 400
basis points. The additional quantitative easing
delivered in February s likely to keep bond
yields depressed unless international investors
lose faith in the UK government’s willingness to
manage public debt effectively. At present, this
looks unlikely. As mentioned earlier, some
parts of the market look expensive when
campared to their historical average and pricing
in these sectors may soften a bit as a result.
Secondary assets pricing is looking compeilling
in same sectoss given the elevated margins,
howeder; pricing is tikely to moderate fisither in
these sectors due to the weak economic
fundamentals and hence stock selection is
absolutely key to identifying undervalued
assets where the pricing reflects the risk to
future income in this part of the market.

Capital Value Correction from End June 2007

Capitrl velyes kv iters
lu&mm kgt
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liastmeiit Managien Stidtugy

income was the Company’s main contributor to
totak retuin In 2011a1 7.6%, with capitdl values
declining slightly by 1%, We éxpect incime to
remain the maln constituent of total return in
2012 and therefore throughout 3011 we
continued to focus.on income as the general
economic-environment worsened, The activity
that we undertook in 2011 (as described below)
has been to protect future income and we
secured 78% of the income at risk through
lease expiries and breaks in 2012 and 2013,
and in 2012 we will continue to look at ways of
securing future income and maximising value to
our shareholders.

Purchases

The Company acquired three properties during
2011 for a total of £22.2m. Our strategy in
purchasing new investments is to acquire good
guality modern properties in strong locations,
let to secure tenants. We are less concerned
about lease length, as the high yield attainable
for shorter leases is attractive, and as the lease
restructuring we undertook in 2011
demonstrates, many occuplers will remain in
their existing property by choice at lease end if
it meets their occupational needs. We seek to
maintain diversity of location, tenant, and lease
expiry risk, as well as asset type.

Bourne House Staines: The purchase of this
property completed in January 2011 for
£8.83m, reflecting an income yield of 9.2%. The
26,500sgft office is let to UB Group until 2016,
and is in a goad location in Staines with strong
tenant demand.

1 Dorset St Southampton: The purchase of this
25,000sqft office completed in fuly 2011 for
£6.4m, reflecting an initial yield of 7.9%. The
property was built in 2007 and Is let to Grant
Thornton, Santander, and Michael Page. The
property is well located in Southampton and is
one of the most modern offices in the City.

Explorer Crawley: We  campleted the purchase
of this 46,0005qft office In September 2011 for
£7.03m, reflecting ayield of $.2%. The property
islette gla;g%e;-te’naml Amgy, Grant. Thormton

£ SRR TR
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Investment Manager's Report {continued)

and Trade Skills 4 U Ltd and was builtin 2002.
Amey had just taken a new lease and were
fitting out the office when we acquired the
investment — they have consolidated several
offices into this location.

Disposals

We continued our policy of selling smaller
assets that have poor return expectations, or
larger assets where we want to realise the profit
from purchase.

Eurolink 31 Normanton: We completed the sale
of this multi let industrial estate located close
to Wakefield in July 2011 for £2.2m, a yield of
9.7%. The multi tet property had short leases
and we were concerned at the future security of
income.

Northern & Shell Tower Docklands: We
completed this sale in December 2011 for
£12.2m, a yield of 7%, The property is located
in a secondary location in the Docklands and is
let until 2022. We purchased this property in
2009 for £10m, a yield of 8.6%, and felt the
time was right to realise the profit and recycle
the capital.

Lister House Leeds: Although the sale
completed in January 2012 we exchanged on
this sale in December 2011. The sale price was
£1.03m, (a yield of 15.6%) and reflected the
very short income duration and poor re-letting
prospects.

Portfolio Valuation

The Company's investment portfolio was valued

« Lease Expiry/Break Profile

threughout 2011 by Jones Lang La Salle. At the
year end the Company's real estate assets were
valued at £162.1m and the Company held cash
of £17.8m (the high cash level was due to the
sale of Northern & Shell Tower in the Docklands
for £12.2m in December 2011}. The investment
portfolio’s initial yield at the year end was 7.5%
{compared to 7.8% at end 2010).

Asset Management

During 2011 capital growth was muted, and
returns were deminated by income. We expect
this to continue in 2012, As a result we take an
active approach to securing income, and over
the course of 2011 secured 78% of the income
at risk through lease expiries and breaks in
2012 and 2013, By securing the future income
streams the Company was able to grow the
dividend whilst maintaining its fully covered
position.

The Company has an average unexpired lease
term to earliest termination date of 7.5 years as
at December 2011, and the chart below shows
the distribution of expiries. Only 5.8% of {otal
rental income remains subject to a lease expiry
or break in 2012 / 2013, with the majority of
the short term events being in 2014 and 2016,
when we expect a stronger economic
environment and continued low supply of good
quality accommaodation. There has been a
consistent trend over the last decade to shorter
leases, with most new leases on second hand
accommedation having a break in year 5. The
Company has a longer average lease length
than several of its peers, and takes an active
approach to understanding its tenants needs
and managing future lease events.

515 '

50 e - - ]
3o
241
10.3
10 Sy - P d
1

19

L . —

Vacanl s SyTsclOprs  10yrselSyrs  15yrscl0wis +20y1s

%Property Total Return

-23

3 months 12 months 3¥ears 5 Years
o 31 Dec 11 to 31 Dec 11 to 31 Dec 11 to 31 Dec 11

W Fund {inc cash) = Fund {eacash) =W Quarterly Version of FD Monthly Index
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despita dur best éfforts to-5.1% ‘from3:3%.
Although we compieted several lettings during
the year, we suffered two tenant failures in
particular {Focus and John Peters Furniture),
that represent 60% of the voids by rental value,
The Company hdd seven void units as at end
2011. One has been let after the reporting
period; and the second targest void is under
offer, We are in the process of changing the
planning consent on the largest void to increase
its appeal, and continue to actively market the
other units.

Performance

The Company measures performance under a
variety of metrics, During the year its direct real
estate investments provided an income return
of 7.6% (IPD quarterty version of monthly index
£.2%}, thus continuing to meet its prime
requirement of delivering a high income return
to investors through a covered dividend. The
Company suffered on a capital retum basis
against its benchmark due to a combination of
purchase transaction costs, shortening lease
lengths and the failure of Focus as a tenant.

The NAV performance was retatively robust
campared to peers, but lagged the targer F&C
Commercial Property Trust in particular.

NAY Perlurmance = 12 months

FBLC ial Property Trust a3
Pu:tan Property Income ~_— . oL .
Standard Life Investments Property lm:ome Tmst LS
UK Commerdal Pmpel'wI Trust R 1.8
ISIS PropenyTrust . I ;6_.5_‘
Invlsta Foundatlort Pmpem‘ Trust ) 4.8
IRF Property investments L -7.9

Source: Datastream
A final measure is share price total retumn to our
investors. Over the course of 2011 the
Comgpany traded on a large premium of up to
10%, through to a large discount of 17%.

[ [LE I Y P & 2

ﬂfﬁ tummsm}ai npen’rﬁwt -
irwlsw ruundamm Praperty’ 'mist
IRF Propesty lnvesiiients

oS
Sta”ndard l{fe trvesiments Pil'op ‘_Eﬁgcnlm!’ T{us} Ly
ﬂlztun Pmpemrtn:nrnc i I +30.6
séconmice T PR
FISE All_. SHARE -85
CFISEEPRAJNARETUX . 8.1

Sourre: Datastream

Since the year end the Company’s ordinary
shares have been re-rated with the ordinary
share price increasing to 63p per share, an
increase of 21.7% since the year end.

Capital Structure

In July 2011 shareholders approved the
simplification of the capital structure with the
conversion of the Zero Dividend Preference
Shares into Ordinary shares. The ZDPs were due
to mature-in December 2013, and the
conversion of the shart term diebt instrument
into long term equity was part of our strategy to
manage down the Company's gearing. At the
same time as the conversion, £4.5m of new
equity was also raised. As a result, the ordinary
share capital was increased by 19%.

Bank Debt

During the period the Company had a bank debt
facility of £84m with RBS, due to expire in
December 2013. The debt was at a margin of
150bps, and the Company had a hedge in place
over £72m of the debt giving an all in cost of
debt of circa 6%. In order to have certainty over
the future debt provision the Company signed a
new debt facility in December 2011 that was
completed In January 2012.

LA T
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Investment Manager’s Report {centinued)

The new facility is for a term of 7 years and is
for the full £84m (the new facility has been
used to repay the old one, not to increase
borrawings). The new facility is on broadly
similar terms, with 2 maximum Loan to Value
(LTV) of 65% for the first 5 years (reducing to
60% for the tast two) — the current LTV is 41%.
The new margin is set on a ratchet basis
depending on the prevailing LTV, but is currently
175hbps. The Company has entered into a new
forward swap on the £72m currently hedged,
and a new 7 year hedge on the remaining
£12m. As a result of the new facility / hedges

Dorset Street, Southhampton

the cost of debt is fixed at 6.38% until
December 2013, and then falls to 3.76% from
January 2014 to maturity in December 2018
(excluding amortisation of costs and facility
fees).

The original hedge maturing in December 2013
was held in the 2011 year end accounts as
having a liability of £6.1m, equating to

4.5 pence per share. That hedge liability will
unwind (although not on a straight line basis)
to £0 by Dec 2013.

Annual Repert and Financial Statements - Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited 10
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Investment Manager's Report {continued)

Ten Largest Tenants

) Tent Earliest
Company ilame Passing Tenminatlon Data
Tesco Stores Ltd £1,189,323 9.3% 26!09[20i6 s

" Hydrasun £1,000,000 7.8% 12/12/2030

Norcross Group (Holdings) Ltd £825,723 . 6.4% 11/12/2014
UB Group . £816,000 . 5.4% 24/03/2016
GrantThornton UK LLP £660,371 5.3% 13/05/2017
Yusen Logistics (UK} Ltd £512,544 £.0% 30/06/2017

- B&Q PLC £3_92.150 3.1% 23/06/2022
Interfleet Technalogy Lid ‘ £390,000 3.0% 22/07/2019 .
Welsh Development Agency £361,500 2.8% 15/06/2014

. Pemry Ellis Witham £350,000 2.7% 18/07/2014

Qutlook

Although there is a chalienging year ahead for
real estate given the projections of a weak
economic backdrop, we continue to expect
reasonable positive total returns for investors
on a three year holding period as income yields
compensate for any modest capital declines,
The sector remains attractive from a
fundamental point of view, i.e, strengthening
underlying economic drivers and a constrained
pipeline of future new developments. The retail
sector continues to face a series of headwinds
that may hold back recovery in weaker locations
but the prospects for retail towards the south
east and Central London are expected to
improve as econgmic recovery gains more
traction. It remains our view that asset
management initiatives and locational choices

Interfleet House, Derby.

will remain the defining characteristics
contributing to income returns in the year
ahead. We aiso expect income to be the main
component of returns over 2012 as capital
values moderate. Prime/good quality secandary
assets in stronger [ocations are likely to be
most resilient in the weak economic
environment we anticipate across 2012. The
Company had circa £14m available for
investment as at the year end, and will seek to
acquire good quality investments that will
contribute to the portfolio's returns, We
anticipate investing the cash in the first half of
the year to benefit from the income return, and
will seek to exploit mispricing from motivated
sellers,

Phase {1 Teletink, Swansea.

Annual Report and Financial Statements - Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited 12
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Directors’ Report

The Directors of Standard Life Investments
Property Income Trust Limited (*the Company™}
and its subsidiary, Standard Life Investments
Property Holdings Limited (together “the
Group™} present their Annual Report and
Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Results and Dividends

The resuits for the year are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income on page 27.

The Company has paid interim dividends in the
year ended 31 December 2011 as fotlows:

Payimient

Rate per

flate shate

| Fourth interm for prior pericd 25 February 2011 1.100p
_Firstinterim 27 May 2011 ° 1.100p

Second interlm 26 August 2011 1.100p
* Third interim 30 November 2011 1.133p

It is the policy of the Directors to declare and
pay dividends as interim dividends. The
Directors do not therefore recommend a final
dividend. A fourth interim dividend of 1.133p
was paid on 24 February 2012 to shareholders
on the register on 10 February 2012.

Principal Activity and Status

The Company was incorporated in Guernsey on
18 November 2003 and commenced activities
on 19 December 2003. The Company is a
closed ended investment company and is
registered under the provisions of The
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. The
principal activity of the Company is property
investment.

Listing

The Company is listed on the London Stock
Exchange {primary listing) and the Channel
Istands Stock Exchange (secondary listing).

The Company has complied with the refevant
provisions of, and the requirements set out in,
the United Kingdom Listing Authority
regulations and also the relevant provisions of
the Channel Islands Stock Exchange LBG Rules
throughout the year under review,

Investment Objective

The Company’s investment objective is to
provide Ordinary Shareholders with an
attractive level of income together with the
prospect of income and capital growth.

Investment Policy

The Directors intend to achieve the investment
objective by investing in a diversified portfolio
of UK commercial properties. The majority of
the portfolio will be invested in direct holdings
within the three main commercial property
sectors of retail, office and industrial. The
Company has not set any maximum weighting
limits in the principal property sectors and it
may also invest in other commercial property
such as hotels, nursing homes and student
housing. Investment in property development
and investment in co-investment vehicles is
permitted up to a maximum of 10 per cent. of
the property portfolio.

In grder to manage risk, without compromising
flexibility, the Directors will apply the following
restrictions to the property portfolio:

e No property will be greater by value than
15 per cent, of total assets.

e No tenant {excluding the Government) will be
responsible for more than 20 per cent. of the
Company’s rent roll.

e Gearing, calculated as borrowings as a
percentage of the Group’s gross assets, will
not exceed 65 per cent. The Board’s current
intention is that the Company’s loan to value
ratio (calculated as borrowings less all cash
as a proportion of Property Portfolio
valuation) will be between 35 per cent. and
45 per cent.

As part of its strategy, the Board has
contractually delegated the management of the
property portfolio, and other services, to
Standard Life Investments {Corporate Funds)
Limited (“Investment Manager”™).

At each Board meeting, the Board receives a
detailed presentation from the Investment
Manager together with a comprehensive
analysis of the performance of the Company
and compliance with the investment
restrictions during the reported period.

Annual Report and Financial Statements - Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Umited 14
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Standard Life Inv
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Directors’ Report {continued)

Pethginal Rishis-andd Bisk Uncortalities

The-Company’s assets-cansist of direct
investments in UK commercial property, its
principal risks are therefore related to the
commercial property market in general, but also
the particular circumstances of the properties
in which it is invested and thelr tenants. More
detailed explanations of these risks and the
way in which they are managed are cantained
under the headings of credit risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and capital risk in note 3 to the
accounts. The Investment Manager also seeks
to mitigate these risks through continual review
of the portfolio, active asset management
initiatives, and carrying out due dillgence work
on potential tenants before entering into new
lease agreements. All of the properties in the
portfolio are insured.

Other risks faced by the Company include the
following:

¢ Economic — inflation or deflation, economic
recessions and movements in interest rates
could affect property valuations and also
bank borrowings.

o Strategic — incorrect strategy, including
sector and property allocation and use of
gearing, couid all lead to poor return for
shareholders.

o Regulatory - breach of regulatory rules could
lead to the suspension of the Company’s
Stock Exchange Listing, financiat penalties or
a qualified audit report.

o Management and contrel — changes that
cause the management and control of the
Company to be exercised in the United
Kingdom could lead to the Company
becoming tiable to United Kingdom taxation
on income and capital gains,

o Financial - inadequate controls by the
Investment Manager or third party service
providers coutld lead to misappropriation of

Fyee.

Standard Life Investments Property
income Trust Limited

assets. inappropriate accounting policies or
failure to comply with accounting standards
could lead to misreporting or breaches of
regulations.

o QOperational — faiture of the Investment
Manager's accounting systems or disruption
to the tnvestment Manager's business, or
that of third party service providers, could
lead to an inability to provide accurate
reporting and monitoring, leading to loss of
shareholder confidence.

The Board seeks to mitigate and manage these
risks through continual review, policy setting
and enforcement of contractual obligations. It
also regularly monitors the investment
environment and the management of the
Company’s property porifolio. Details of the
Company’s internal controls are described in
more detail on page 23.

The Board and the Investment Manager
recognise the importance of the share price
relative to net asset value in maintaining
shareholder value. The Investment Manager
meets with current and potentiat shareholders
on a regular basis, as well as with investment
company analysts.

Key Performance Indicators

The Board uses a number of performance
measures to assess the Company's success in
meeting its objectives. The key performance
indicators are; Property income and total return
against the Investment Property Databank
Batanced Monthly Funds Index, net asset value
totai return, share price return, discount of the
share price to net asset value, dividend per
share and dividend yield. These indicators for
the year ended 31 December 2011 are referred
to in the Chairman’s Statement and Investment
Manager’'s Report.

15" Anivuai Report ani Finartclal Slatements - Standand Life investments Propirty tncome Trust Uisied
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Directors’ Report (continued)

Substantial Shareholdings

As at 31 December 2011 and 23 March 2012,
the following entities have a holding of 3% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital.

% holding

/12001 2336010
! Sandard Life Investments 2.4 2.4 |
« Brewin Dolphin 22.1 218
" M&G Investment Management 7.0 7.0
Legal & General Investment Management 1.8 3.8
8aring Asset Management 3.3 3.0
| Blackrock 3.1 3.4

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year
and at the date of this Report are set out on
page 21.

The Directors each hold the following number of
ordinary shares in the Company:

Qrdinary Shaves held
/122010

11242011

" Paul Orchard-Lisle 34,275 25,000 ¢

, Richard 8arfield 40,128 10,000
Sally-Arn Famon 15,000 15,000 ¢+

' Shetagh Mason 15,000 15,000 !
David Moare 15,000 15,000

There have been no changes in the above
interests between 31 December 2011 and
23 March 2012.

Directors’ Indemnity

The Company maintains insurance in respect of
birectors’ and Officers’ liabilities in relation to
their acts on behalf of the Company. The
Company's Articles of Assaciation provide,
subject to the provisions of Guersey
legislation, for the Company to indemnify
Directors in respect of costs which they may
incur relating to the defence of any proceedings
brought against them arising out of their
position as Directors in which judgement is
given in their favour or they are acquitted.

Disclosure of Information to Auditor

In the case of each of the persons who are
Directors at the time when the Annual Repaort
and Consolidated financial Statements are
approved, the following applies:

® so far as the Director is aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the
Group’s auditor is unaware; and

e hefshe has taken all the steps that he/she
ought to have taken as a Director in order to
make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the
Group’s auditor is aware of that information.

Going Concern

The Company’s business activities, together
with the factors likely to affect its future
development, performance and position are set
aut in the Investment Policy on page 14 and
Principal Risks and Risk Uncertainties on

page 15.

The Directors have examined significant areas
of possible financial risk including cash and
cash requirements and the debt covenants, in
particular the LTV covenant and interest cover
ratio. They have not identified any material
uncertainties which cast significant doubt on
the ability to continue as a going concern fora
period of not less than 12 months from the date
of the approval of the financial statements. The
Directors have satisfied themselves that the
Company has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. After due consideration the Board
believes it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Corporate Governance

The Directors’ report on Corporate Governance
is detailed on pages 19-23 and forms part of
the Directors’ Report.

Annual Report and Financial Statements - Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited 16
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Income Trust Limited

Directors’ Report (connnued)

As at 31 December 2011 there'were
136,631,746 ordinary shares of 1p each in
issue. All ardinary. shares rank equally for
dividends and distributions and carmry one vote
each. There are no restrictions concerning the
transfer of ardinary shares in the Company, no
spetial fights with régard to cofitrol attached to
the ordinary shares, no agreemenis between
holders of ordinary shares regarding thelir
transfer known to the Company and no
agreement which the Company is party to that
affects its control following a takeover bid.

Issue of Shares

As required by the Listing Rules, the Directors
will anly issue shares at prices which are not
less than the net asset vatue of the ordinary
shares unless such shares are first offered on a
pre-emptive basis to existing shareholders or
otherwise with the approval of shareholders.

Independent Auditor

The independent auditor, Ernst and Young LLP,
has indicated its wiilingness to continue in
office, and a resolution that it wilt be
reappointed will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting.

Resolutions Proposed at Annual General
Meeting

Directors’ Authority to buy back shares
{resctution 5)

The Company did not purchase any shares for
cancellation during the financial year ending
31 December 2011. The current authority of the
Company to make market purchases of shares
expires at the end of the Annual General
Meeting.

Resolution § as set aut In the notice of the
Annual General Meeting seeks renewal of this
authority to make market purchases of up to
14.99'per £ent of the {s8ued ordinary share
caphal, such authority to last uptil the earlier of
15 November 2013 and the Annual General
Meeting In 2013, Aty buy Back of ordinary

P L

shares will be made subject to Guernsey law,
‘the UKLA's Listing Rules and within any
'guidelines éstablished from time to time by the
‘Board and the making-and timing of any buy
‘hacks will be at the absoluté discretion of the

Beard. Purchases of ordinary shares wilt only be

‘made through the market for cash.at prices

below the prevailing net asset value of the
ordinary shares (as tast calcutated) where the
Directors believe such purchases will enhance
sharehotder value. The price paid will not be
less than the nominal vatue of 1p per share.
Such purchases will also only be made in
accordance with the rules of the UK Listing
Authority which provide that the price to be
paid must not be more than the higher of;

(i) 105 per cent of the average of the middle
market guotations (as derived from the Daily
Official List of the London Stock Exchange) for
the Ordinary Shares for the five business days
before the shares are purchased; and {ii} the
higher of the last independent trade and the
highest current independent bid on the trading
venue on which the purchase is carried out. Any
shares purchased under the authority wilt be
cancelied or held in treasury.

Directors® Authorlty to atlot shares on a non
pre-emptive basis (resolution 6)

Resolution 6 as set out in the notice of the
Annual General Meeting gives the Directors, for
the period until the conclusion of the annual
general meeting in 2013 or if earlier on the
expiry of 15 months from the passing of the
resolution, the necessary authority to either
allot securities or sell shares held in treasury,
otherwise than to existing shareholders on a
pro-rata basis, up to an aggregate nominat
amount of £136,631. This is equivalent to
approximately 10 per cent of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company as at

23 March 2012. It is expected that the
Company will seek this authority on an annual
basis. The Directors will only exercise this
authority if they betieve it is advantageous and
in the best interests of shareholders.

. ‘,“;L b . ) T ¥
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Directors’ Report {continued)

Memorandum of Incorporation (resolutlon 7)

Resolution 7 as set out in the notice of the
Annual General Meeting proposes an
amendment to the Memorandum of
Incorporation to take account of changes
introduced by the Companies {Guernsey) Law
2008 which removes the requirement for the
Company to have authorised share capital.

A copy of the new Memorandum of
Incorporation will be available for inspection at
the offices of Dickson Minto W.5. 20 Primrose
Street, London EC2A 1EW during normal
working hours on any weekday (Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays excepted) from
the date of the notice of the AGM until the
conclusion of the AGM and on the date of the
AGM from 15 minutes prior to the AGM until the
conciusion of the AGM.

The Directors believe that the resolutions being
put to the shareholders at the AGM are in the
best interests of the shareholders as a whole.
Accordingly the Directors unanimously
recommend that Sharehoiders vote in favour of
the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM.

Approved by the Board on 23 March 2012

Paul Orchard-Lisle
Chairman

Annual Report and Financial Statements - Standard Life investments Property incame Trust Limited 18
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intraduction

As a company incorporated in Guermnsey with a
premiym tisting of equity shares an the,London
Stock £xchange, the Company i$ required to
comjily with the UK Corporate Govemance Code
(the “UX Code™) or explain any non-compliance.
The UK Code was issued in june 2010,
replacing the Combined Code, and is first in
effect for the Company's year ended 31
December 2011, The Board believes that the
Group has complied throughout the accounting
period with the provisions set outin the UK
Code, subject to the statements made in the
Corporate Governance Report below.

The Guernsey Financial Services Commission
published its Code of Corporate Governance
(the “Guernsey Code™) in September 2011.

This code is effective from 1 january 2012. By
complying with the UK Code, the Board believes
that it will be in compliance with the provisions
of the Guernsey Code also.

The Boeard has considered the principles and
recommendations of the AiC’s Code of
Corporate Governance {the “AlC Code®) and
fotlows the AlC Corporate Governance Gulde for
Investment Companies (the “AIC Guide™), which
provides a framework of best practice for
investment companies. The Financial Reporting
Council has confirmed that, by following the AIC
Guide, investment company boards should fully
meet their obligations in relation to the UK
Code.

The AIC Code and the AIC Guide are available
on the AIC’s website, www.aic.co.uk. The UK
Code is available on the Financial Reporting
Council's website, www.frc.org.uk. The
Guernsey Code is available on the Guernsey
Financial Services Commission’s website,
www.gfsc.gg.

The Board considers that it is appropriate to
report against the principlies and
recommendations of the AlC Code by reference
to the AIC Guide {which incorporates the UK
Code}). Except as disclosed beldw, the
Company complied throughout the yearwith
the recommendations of the AIC Code and the
retevaint provisions &f the UK Code.

The UK Code contains provisfons in rélation fo:

s

o the role of the chief executive
o executive directors' remaneration

o the need for an internal audit function

{n accordance with the AIC Code and pre-ambie
to the UK Codé, the Board considers that these
provisions are not relevant to the position of
the Company, being an externally managed
investment company with all Directors non-
executive. The Company has therefore not
reported further on these provisions.

The Board

The Board comprises solely of non-executive
Directors of which Paul Orchard-Lisle is
Chairman and Richard Barfield has been
designated as Senior Independent Director. All
Directors are considered by the Board to be
independent of the Investment Manager.

David Moare, who was Chairman of the
Company until 24 May 2011 and continues as a
Director, is a partner with Mourant Ozannes
Advocates and Notaries Publle in Guernsey
(“Mourant Ozannes”). Mourant Ozannes
provide Guernsey legal advice to the Company
and Mourant Qzannes Securities Limited, an
associated company, is the Company’s
Guernsey sponsor in relation to the Company's
listing on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange.
Mr Moore is not directly involved in the
provisions of the sponsorship services by
Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited and
refrains from participation in and voting upon
any board resolutions concerning the
appointment or remuneration of Mourant
Ozannes and Mourant Ozannes Securities
Limited. The total fees payabte to Mourant
Ozannes and Mourant Ozannes Securities
Limited for general services provided to the
Group in the year ended 31 December 2011,
was £28,161 (2010: £1,252).

The Board has delegated day-to-day
management of the Group's assets to the
investment Manager. All decisions relating to
the Company's investment policy, investment
obfuctive, divk}end=pnllcy, gearing, corporate
gwgm:;nnwnﬁ szmtagwn gengiat arg resxwed
for l;ha Beard. The Board meets quartery and

i
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

receives full information on the Company
performance, financial position and any other
relevant information. At least once a year, the
Board also holds a strategy meeting.

individual Directors are entitled to have access
to independent professional advice at the
Company's expense where they deem it
necessary to discharge their responsibilities as
Directors, The Company maintains appropriate
Directors and Officers liability insurance.

Board Committees

The Board has appeinted a number of
Committees — the Property Valuation
Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Management Engagement Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

The Property Valuation Committee, chaired by
Paul Orchard-Lisle, comprises the full Board
and meets four times a year. The Committee is
convened for the purpose of reviewing the
quarterly independent property valuation
reports prior to their submission to the Board.

The Audit Committee, chaired by Sally-Ann
Farnon, comprises the full Board and meets at
least twice a year. The Committee considers
reports from the auditor, the Investment
Manager and the Administrator. The main
responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
manitoring the integrity of the Company's
financial statements and appropriateness of its
accounting policies, reviewing the effectiveness
of the internal control systems and making
recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment, independence and remuneration
of the auditor. The Committee is responsible for
monitoring the objectivity and effectiveness of
the audit process, with particular regard to
terms under which the auditor is appointed to
perform non-audit services. During the year, the
Company’s auditor was involved in non-audit
work in relation to the prospectus issued in
June 2011 and residency advice regarding the
appointment of the chairman and received fees
of £7,500 in respect of this (2010 £nil).
Shareholders have the oppertunity at each
Annual General Meeting to vote on the election
of the auditor for the forthcoming year.

The Management Engagement Committee, is
chaired by Shelagh Mason, Other members of

the Committee are Sally-Ann Farnon, David
Moore and Paul Orchard-Lisle. The Committee
meets at least once a year to review the
continuing appointment of the Investment
Manager and other service providers, together
with the terms and conditions thereon.

The Nomination Committee, chaired by Richard
Barfield, comprises the full Board and meets at
least once a year. Appointments of new
Directors are considered by the Committee
taking account of the need to maintain a
balanced Board. There have been ne new
Directors appointed during the year. New
Directors appointed to the Board receive a
formal induction and appropriate training is
arranged for new and current Directors as
required.

The Remuneration Committee, chaired by
Richard Barfield, comprises the full Board and
meets at least once a year. The Committee
reviews the level of Directors’ fees, ensuring
that they reflect the time commitment and
responsibilities of the role and are fair and
comparable with those of similar companies.

Each Committee has terms of reference, with
clearly defined responsibilities and duties. The
terms of reference are available on request from
the Company Secretary.

Tenure Policy

Future Board appointments will normally be
made for a maximum of three 3 year terms.
There is a commitment to refresh the Board at
regular intervals.

There are no service contracts in existence
between the Company and any Directors but
each of the Directors was appeinted by letter of
appointment which sets out the main terms of
his or her appointment.

Paul Orchard-Lisle, Richard Barfield, Shelagh
Mason and David Moore were appointed as
Directors of the company on 18 November
2003, Sally-Ann Farnon was appointed on 1 July
2010,

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company, one third, or the number nearest to
but not exceeding one third, of the Directors
will retire and stand for re-election at the
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?nual General Meetln eaz;h year pmwded the prowsisns uf tha Articles ot Assoc[a!iun in
thit'éach Directar shatlvetire antlstand forre-  rélatlon to retinaent as described dbove.
election at the Annual Generat Maéting
immediately following thelr appeintment then The Board has reviewed the skills of Richard
at intervais of no more than thiee years. Atthe  Barfield and 'has no hesitation in
Asnual Generat Meeting held in 2012, Richard recommending to shareholders his re-election
Barfleld will retire and be proposed for re- at the AGM,
election. Each Director, is appointed subject to

Directors Information

Biographical details of each Director are set out below.

Paul Orchard-Liste, CBE, (Chairman) is a UK resident. He is a chartered surveyor and
until 2000 he was the senior partner of Healey & Baker {now Cushman and
Wakefield). He was chairman of Slough Estates (now Segro plc) and was executive
chairman of The Falcon Property Trust. He has been an advisor to the UK government
on praperty matters and was formerly the President of The Royal Institution of
Charted Surveyors. He is currently a director of PowerLeague Ltd and Stobart Group
Ml Ltd, and was Chairman of Apache Capital LLP. He is also advisor to Patron Capital and
Crown Golf UK.

Richard Barfield is a UK resident. He is Chairman of The Baillie Gifford Japan Trust

3| plc and is a non-executive director of The Edinburgh Investment Trust. He is an

M adviser to two pension funds, a trustee of another and a member of the Board of the
Pension Protection Fund. He was previgusly the Chief investment Manager of
Standard Life.

Sally-Ann (Susie) Farnon is a resident of Guernsey. Susie is a chartered accountant
and was & banking and finance Partner with KPMG Channel Islands from 1990 until
2001 and Head of Audit KPMG Channel Islands and a former member of The States of
Guernsey Public Accounts Committee. She is currently a Commissioner of The
Guernsey Financial Services Commission and a non executive director of Cenkos
Channet Islands Ltd, New River Retail Ltd (until 1 April 2012), Breedon Aggregates Ltd
and Dexion Absolute Ltd. She is also a directer of a number of private property and
investment companies.

i Shelagh Mason is a resident of Guernsey. She is an English property solicitor with

8 over 30 years experience in commercial property. She was previgusly a senior partney
| of Edge & Eilison (now part of Hammonds). She is currently a partner of Spicer &
Partners Guernsey LLP, is a non-executive director of a number of other companies
and is also a past Chairman of the Guernsey Branch of the Institute of Directors and a
member of the Chamber of Commerce and the Guernsey International Legal
Association,

1 David Moore is a resident of Guernsey. He is an advocate of the Royal Court of
Guemsey and 1S a partner with Mourant Ozannes, the Company’s lawyess in

| Guernsey, He has been with Mounrant Ozannes since 1993 and before that spent 10
d years in the City of Landon, predominantly with Ashurst Morris Crisp, He specialises
§ in carporate and ﬁﬂanctai matlers and 1§ a nom-exacutive director of a ﬁumber gf
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Performance of the Board

During the year the performance of the Board,
Committees and individual Directors was
evaluated through an assessment process, led
by the Chairman. The performance of the
Chairman was evaluated by the other Directors.

Meeting Attendance

The table below sets out the number of
scheduled Board and Committee meetings held
during the year and the number attended by
each Director.

Managemoent

engagement

Full board Audit Conumittee Commillee

Hold  Attonded Held  Attenduoed Held  Allestded

 Paul Orchard-Liste 4 4 2 2 1 1

Richard Barfield 4 4 2 2 nfa nfa

_ Sally-Ann Farnon 4 4 2 2 1 1

Shelagh Mason 4 4 2 2 1 1

_QavigMoore = . e A A 2. 2 1
Praperty

Valuation Noinination Remuneratien

Conmitiee Commitiee Committee

Held  Attended Heled Altended Held  Allended

; Paul Orchard-Lisle 4 4 1 1 1 1

- Richard Barfield 4 4 1 1 i 1

Sally-Ann Farnon 4 4 1 1 1 1

. Shelagh Mason 4 4 1 1 1 1

David Maore_ 4 4 b1 1 1 1

Remuneration of Board

The Directors who served during the year ended
31 December 2011 received the following
emoluments in the forms of fees:

Yeartu 31

Decemher 2011
! Paul Orchard-Lisle £26,260 £20,625 |
1 Richard Barfield £22,500 £20,625
+ John Hallam .
; {resigned 30 June 2010) _£8,375 .
+ Sally-Anr Famon .
! (appointed 30 June 2010) £22,500 £11,250
, Shelagh Mason £21,500 £20,625
- David Moore £24,955 £26,875
TTotal £118,715 £109,375

following a review of Directors’ fees by the
Remuneration Committee in November 2011, it
was decided that, with effect from 1 January
2012, the level of fees per annum would
increase to £30,000 for the Chairman, £23,500
for the Audit Committee Chairman and would
remain at £22,500 for the other Directors.

Environmental Policy

The Manager acquires, develops and manages
properties on behalf of the Group. Itis
recognised that these activities have both
direct and indirect envirenmental impacts.

The Board has endorsed the Manager's own
environmental policy which is to work in
partnership with contractors, suppliers, tenants
and consultants to minimise those impacts,
seeking continuous improvements in
environmental performance and conducting
regular reviews.

Investment Management Agreement

As noted above, the Management Engagement
Committee reviews the performance of, and
contractual arrangements with, the investment
Manager on an annual basis. Under the
investment management agreement between
the Company and the investment Manager, the
Investment Manager is entitled to an annual fee
equal to 0.85% of the total assets of the
Company, payable quarterly in arrears except
where cash balances exceed 10% of total
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assets. The fee appiicable ta ths amogit of
cash exceeding-%‘% of the tnt fassetalis |
reduced to be'G.20% per annum payable
quarterly in arrears. The Investment Manager
has agreed to.charge only 0.75% of the total
assets of the Company Until such time as the
published net asset value per share returns to
the launch level of 97p. This is applicable from
the quarter end ended 31 December 2008
onwards, and does not effect the reduced fee of
0.20%:0n cash holding above 10% of totat
assets. The investment management agreement
is terminabte upon 12 months® notice (or a
payment in lieu of notice equal to any
unexpired portion of that 12 manth pertod) and
may be terminated summarily in certain limited
circumstances. The Board has considered the
appropriateness of the continuing appointment
of the tnvestment Manager in view of the
perfarmance of the Investment Manager, the
fees payable to the fnvestment Manager and
the notice period under the investment
management agreement. The Board has
canctuded that the continuing appointment of
the Investment Manager on the terms agreed is
in the best interest of shareholders as a whole.

internal Controls

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the
Company’s system of internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management systems and has
procedures in place for the review of such
controls on an annuai basis. investment
management services and administration
services are provided to the Company by
Standard Life Investments (Corporate Funds)
Limited (the Investment Manager} and Northern
Trust international Fund Administration Services
(Guernsey) Limited (the Administrator)
respectively. The Company’s system of internal
control therefore is substantially reliant on the
fnvestment Manages's and the Administrator's
own internal controls. The Beard has
considered the AAF 01/06 internal controls
report issued by the Investment Manager and
similar reports issued by tha Administrator. This
process accords with the Turnbull guidance. The
system is desighed to-manage rather than
eliminate the ¢isk of failiire to dchieve business
chiettmss The Systent can only provide

e nok abﬁn!uxe agsurancy agamsi
missiStEant of loss.

&3 Aﬂnuai Report aml Fimmcial Slatements Standard Ufe h‘meshnenis Pmpeﬁ

Intemal cnntm[ amcgciures h?ve heenin place
mmughautflhé yearaid dy to the date of
approval of this Report, and the Board is
satisfied with thair effectiveness. At each-Board
meeting, the Board monitors the investment
performance of the Company in compafison to
its stated ubjectwe and against comparable
companies. The Board alse reviews the
Company’s.activities since the last Board
meeting to ensure that thie Investment-Manager
adheres to the'agreed investment policy and
guidetines and, if hecessary, approves changes
to such policy and guidelines. In addition, at each
Board meeting, the Board receives reports from
the Secretary in respect of compliance matters
and duties performed on behalf of the Company.

Following the implementation of the Bribery Act
2010 in the UK, the Board has adopted
appropriate procedures designed to prevent
bribery,

The Board has also reviewed a statement from
the Investment Manager detailing arrangements
in place whereby the Investment Manager's
staff may, in confidence, escalate concerns
about possible improprieties in matters of
financial reporting or other matters.

Relations with Shareholders

The Board welcomes correspondence from
shareholders, addressed to the Company's
registered office. All shareholders have the
opportunity to put questions to the Board at the
Annuat General Meeting. The Board hopes that
as many shareholders as possible will be able
to attend the meeting.

To promote a clear understanding of the
Company, its objectives and financial results,
the Board aims to ensure that information
relating ta the Cempany is disclosed in a timely
manner and once published; guarterly
factsheets, the interim report and annual report
are available on the Company’s wabsite which
can be found at
www,standardlifeinvestments.co.uk/its.

The Investment Manager continues to offer
individual meetings ta the largestinstitational
and private client manager shareholders and
reports back to the Board on these meetings.

Payi or
Charfrs
23 R!Jarch 20I2
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing
Financial Statements for each year which give a
true and fair view, in accordance with the
applicable Guernsey law and International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union, of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group
for that year. In preparing those Financial
Statements, the Directors are required to:

® Select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

® Make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

# State whether applicable accounting
standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures
disclosed and explained in the Financial
Statements; and

# Prepare the Financial Statements on a going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Group will continue in
business.

The Directors confirm that they have
compliedwith the above requirements in
preparing the Financial Statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
proper accounting records, which disclese with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
position of the Group and to enable them to
ensure that the Financial Statements comply
with The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008,
They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and hence for taking
raasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud, error and non compliance
with law and regulations.

The maintenance and integrity of the
Company’s website is the responsibility of the
Directors; the work carried out by the auditors
does not involve considerations of these
matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept
no responsibility for any change that may have
occurred to the Financial Statements since they
were initially presented on the website.
Legislation in Guernsey governing the
preparation and dissemination of the financial
statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Responsibility Statement of the
Directors’ in respect of the
Consuolidated Annual Report

The Directors each confirm to the best of their
knowledge that:

(a) the Consolidated Financial Statements,
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the Eurcpean Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and net return of the
Group; and

{b} the Annuail Report includes a fair review of
the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group,
together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties faced.

Approved by the Board on 23 March 2012.

(%ﬁr_c.w
Paul Orchard-Lisle ally-Ann Farnon

Chairman Director
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financialistatements of Standard Life
Investments Property income Trust Limited for
the year ended 31 December 2011 which
cumprise the Consalidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated
Batance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statemenit and the related notes 1 to 27. The
financlal reporting framework that has been
apptled in their preparation is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

This report is made solely to the company's
members, as a body, in accordance with
Sectlon 262 of the Companies {Guernsey) Law,
2008, Qur audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are reguired to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company’s members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of
directors and auditor

As explained maore fully in the Directors’
Responsibilities Statement on page 24, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of
the group consolidated financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. Qur responsiblility is to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland}. Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the fnancial
statements sufficient to give reasonable

i
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from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the group’s circiimstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed;
the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors; and-the
overall-presentation of the financial statements.

In addition, we read all the firancial and non-
financial information in the Annual Report and
Financial Statements to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

o give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and
of its profit for the year then ended;

o have been properly prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union; and

o have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies (Guernsey)
Law, 2008.

iatters on which we are required
to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following:

Under the Companies {Guernsey) Law, 2008 we
are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

o proper accounting records have not been
kept; or

o the financial statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records; or

TER TR A R 1
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Standard Property Income Trust Limited

e we have not received all the information and
explanaticns we require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to
review:

# the part of the Corporate Governance
Statement relating to the company’s
compliance with the nine provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance Code specified
for our review.

Michael Bane

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Guernsey

23 March 2012
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Rental income - U Lo 14,145,830
Valuatio'n floss) fgain fmminvestment pmbertles -7 (2.668.364}_
Profit on disposat of investment prapertiesi oy 612,648 -
Investmint management fees. © i CE (1,319,897)
Other direct property operating expenses {930,112)
Directors' fees and expenses 24 {122,127)
Valuer's fee 4 (33,947)
Auditor's fee 4 (38,764)
Other administration expenses T {217,447
Operatingprot T samsarr
Finance income 5 51,732
Finance costs 5 (5.320,093)

‘11,450,575

6,909,885 -
3,795,227
{1,263,729) :
(1,183,064)
(112,091}
(37,936)
{33,500)
(181,521)

19,343,796

91,338
(5.539,955)
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Profit for the year ’ 4,180,116 13,895,179
Other comprehensive income
Valuation gain / (loss) on cash flow hedges 13 1,320,954 (1,287,454)
—Total ;Jmpreﬁén;lve Incom; f-or t_he yea—r. nei of tax o N —5.50.1-.0-10— 11.607.725
Earnings per share:
Basic and diluted earnings per share 19 . 3.35 12.15
L ' L ‘ pence . .pence.

All items in the above Consolidated Statement-of Comprehensive Income derive from

continuing operations.

The notes on pages 33 to 59 are an integral part of these Consolidated Finan
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Standard Life Investments Property

Income Trust Limited

Caonsolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Notes £
ASSETS
Non-current assets

" Freehold investment properties 7 137,181,065 119,911,195 -

. Leasehold Iinvestment properties 7 20,031,594 31,481,594
Lease incentives 7 3,516,748 3,273,974

160,729,407 154,666,763 -

" Investment property held for sale 8 998,000 .
Current assets

" Trade and other receivables 9 1,642,602 1,607,101
Prepaid expenses 27 675,462 -
Cash and cash equivalents 10 17,825,381 21,170,716

20,143,445 22,777,817

" Total assets 181,870,852 177,444,580
EQUITY

. Capital and reserves attributable
to Company's equity holders
Share capital 17 20,440,011 6,671,438
Retained earnings 18 6,349,453 5,158,901

- Capital reserves 18 (37,372,610) {(36,638,104)

. Other distributable reserves 18 97;838,372 98,138,586
Total equity 87,255,226 ) 73.330.821_
LIABILITIES

, Nen-current liabilities

' Bank borrowings 12 84,238,408 84,140,896

: Interest rate swaps 13 3,007.460 4,578,987
Redeemable preference shares 14 9,041,060
Other liabilities 15 6,094 6,094
Rental deposits due to tenants 341,660 450,799

' ' 87,593,622

98,217,836
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3,079,758
2,815,665 -

" 500 "

5,8'9'5.923 ‘

94 615 626 104,113,759

Total equity and liabilities T181,870,852 177,444,580

Met Asset Vatue per share ' 21 63.9p 64.1p

Approved by the Board of Birectors on 23 March 2012

The notes on pages 33 to 59 are an integral part of these Consclidated Financial Statements.

Sally-Ann Farnon
Director
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Standard Life Investments Property

Income Trust L

ted

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equi

for the year ended 31 December 2011
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Notes £ £
Cash generated from operating activities . 22 11,965,530 8,291,372
Cash flows from investing activities '
Finance income ‘5 51,732 91,338 .
Purchase of investment properties 7 (22,274,624)  (32,430,642)
Capital expenditure on investment properties 7 (747.844)  (10,767,410)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 22 14,175,639 35,325,327
Net cash used in investing activities (8,795,097) (7,781,387)
Cash flows from financing activities .
Ordinary shares issued net of issue costs | 17 4,427,299
Bank borrowing arrangement costs 27 {675,462)
Interest paid on bank borrowing 5 {1,774,420) {1,719,974)
Payment on interest rate swaps 5 (3,147,947} (3,211,093)
Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders 20 (5,345,238} (5,205,200)
Net cash used in financing activities (6,515,768} (10,136,267}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the year (3,345,335) (9,626,282)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 21,170,716 30,796,998
- Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . 10 17,825,381 21,170,716

The notes on pages 33 to 59 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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fori the year en_._.

1. GERERAL INFORRIATION

Standard Life Investments Property Income
Trust Limited (“the Company®) and its
subsidiary{together thé "Group™) carfies on the
business of property investmerit through a
portfolio of freehold and leasehold investment
properties located in the United Kingdom. The
Company 1s a limited liability company
incorporated and domicited in Guernsey,
Channel Islands. The Company has its primary
listing on the London Stock Exchange with a
secondary listing on the Channel Islands Stock
Exchange.

The address of the registered office is Trafaigar
Court, Les Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey.

These audited Consolidated Financial
Statements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 23 March 2612.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation

The audited Consclidated Financial Statements
of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with and camply with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the
Eurapean Union ("IFRS"), and all applicable
requirements of The Companies {Guernsey)
Law, 2008. The audited Consolidated Financial
Statements of the group have been prepared
under the historical cost convention as
modified by the measurement of investment
property and derivative financial instruments at
fair value, The consolidated financial
statements are presented in pound sterling and
all values are not rounded except when
otherwise indicated.

Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent
with those of the previous financial year, except
that the Group has adepted the foltowing new
and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations as
of 1 January 2011:

o IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
{amendment) effective 1 fanuary 2011,

o [AS 32 Flnanmal instruments: Presentation
(amendpnent) effeczive 1 February 2010,

o itprovaihents ttMFESs (qu ’.toi(ﬁ

— @y

¢ -;$tateri§ents
13K '

IS 24 Related Party Transactions
{Amendment)

The {ASB has issued an amendmaent to 1AS 24
that clarified the definitions of a related party.
The new definitions emphasise a symmetrical
view on related party refationships as well as
clarifying in which circumstances persons and
key management perspnnel affect related party
relationships of an entity. Secondly, the
amendment introduces an exemption from the
general related party disclosure requirements,
for transactions with a government and entities
that are controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the same
government as the reporting entity. The
adoption of the amendment did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but the appropriate disclosures
are included in Note 24.

{AS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation (Amendment)

The amendment addresses the accounting for
rights issues (rights, aptions or warrants) that
arg denoininatedi’in‘a cumrency other than the
functional currency of the issuer. Previously
such rights issues were accounted for as
derivative liahilities and the amendment
requires that, provided certain conditions are
met, such rights issues are classified as equity
regardless of the currency in which the exercise
price is denominated.

improvements to IFRSs

In May 2010, the IFRS Board issued its third
omnibus of amendments to its standards,
primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There
are separate transitional provisions for each
standard. The adoption of the following
amendments resulted in changes to accounting
policies, hut did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group:

IFRS 3 Business Cembinations: The
measurement oplions avaiiable for non-
controlling interest {NCI) have

been- amended Only components of NCI that
thasiitute a predent ewngrshlp intarest that
entities thelr holder 16 a proportionata share of

e [ SAPIEI . ') T
33 Apruat Report and Financlal Statiements - Stafdird Ufa Tnvestments. Moperfy income Trust Limited
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2011

the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation shall be measured at either fair
value or at the present ownership instruments’
proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
are to be measured at their acquisition date fair
value.

The amendments to IFRS 3 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 july
2010. The Group however adopted these as of
1 January 2011 and changed its accounting
policy accordingly.

{FRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures: The
amendment was intended to simplify the
disclosures provided, by reducing the volume of
disclosures around collateral held and
improving disclosures by requiring qualitative
information to put the quantitative information
in context. The Group reflects the revised
disclosure requirements in Note 3.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: The
amendment provides an option to present an
analysis of each component of other
comprehensive income maybe either in the
statement of changes in equity (SOCIE) or in the
notes to the financial statements. The Group
provides this analysis in the SOCIE.

Other amendments resulting from
Improvements to IFRSs to the following
standards did not have any impact on the
accounting policies, financial position or
performance of the Group:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Contingent
consideration arising from business
combination prior to adoption of IFRS 3 (as
revised in 2008))

IFRS 3 Business Combinations {Un-replaced and
voluntarily replaced share-based payment
awards)

1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

IAS 34 Interim Financial Statements

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
(determining the fair value of award credits)

{FRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments

2.2 Significant accounting judgements,
estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial
statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a2 material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset
or liability affected in the future periods.

Going Concern

The Group's management has made an
assessment of the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern and is satisfied that the
Group has the resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, management is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern.Therefore, the financial
statements continue to be prepared on the
going concern hasis.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment property is stated at fair value as at
the Balance Sheet date. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair values are included in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the year in which they arise. The fair
value of investment properties is determined by
independent real estate vatuation experts using
recognised valuation techniques. The fair
values are determined based on recent real
estate transactions with similar characteristics
and locations to those of the Group's assets.

The determination of the fair value of
investment properties requires the use of
estimates such as future cash flows from the
assets. The estimates of the future cash flows
reflect factors such as repair and conditions of
the properties, lease terms, future lease events,
as well as other relevant factors for the

Annual Report and Financial Statements - Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited 34
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‘ pammia_rmwstm?nt: Thiede estimates dry
hased on local maiket conditfor's existing at the
Batance Sheet date.

Fair value of financiz! instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities recarded in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation technigues that include the use of
mathematicai models, The input to these
models are taken from observable markets
where possibie, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair value. The judgements include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs
such as credit risk (both own and
counterparty's), correlation and volatility.
Changes In assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments, The models are calibrated
regularly and tested for validity using prices
fram any observable current market
transactions in the same instrument

{without modification ar repackaging) or based
on any avaitable chservable market data.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting
policies

A. Basis of consolidation

The audited consolidated financia! statements
comprise the financial statements of Standard
Life investments Property Income Trust Limited
and its only material wholly owned subsidiary
undertaking, Standard Life Investments
Property Holdings Limited, a company with
limited liability incorporated and domiciled in
Guernsey, Channel Islands.

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and
operating potices generally evidenced by a
shareholding of more than gne half of the
vating rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently
exerélsable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group

for the vear eﬁded?l Becémber 2011 i

‘clirithols anotierentity. Sulfstdigies are fidly
consolidated from the date on which control Is
transferred to the Group and they are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, ‘balances and
unrealised gains and losses on transactions
between Group-companies sire eliminated
on-consolidation. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
nacessary to ensure conslstency

with the policies adopted by the Group,

8. Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ("the
functional currency"}. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in pounds
sterling, which is also the Company's functional
currency.

C. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised as follows;

a) Bank interest

Bank interest income is recognised on an
accruals basis.

b} Rental income

Rental income from operating leases is net of
sales taxes and VAT and is recognised on a
straight line basis over the lease term. The cost
of any lease incentives provided are recognised
over the lease term, on a straight line basis as a
reduction of rental income. The resulting asset
is reflected as a receivable in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. The valuation of investment
properties is reduced by the total of the
unamortised lease incentive balances, Any
remaining fease incentive balances in respect
of properties disposed of are included in the
catcutation of the profit orloss arising at
disposal.

Contingent rents, being those payments that
e aot fixed at the'inception of the lease, for
exgrple increaiqs arsingdn nent |

o . W - . :
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2011

reviews, are recorded as income in periods
when they are earned. Rent reviews which
remain outstanding at the year end are
recognised as income, based on estimates,
when it is reasonable to assume that they will
be received.

Surrender premiums received by the Group
following the break of a lease are recognised as
income to the extent that there are no
obligations directly related to that surrender.

c) Property disposals

Where revenue is obtained by the sale of
properties, it is recognised when the significant
risks and returns have been transferred to the
buyer. This will normally take place on
exchange of contracts unless there are
significant conditions attached. For conditional
exchanges, sales are recognised when these
conditions are satisfied.

D. Expenditure

All expenses are accounted for on an accruals
basis. The investment management and
administration fees, finance (including interest
on the bank facility and the finance cost of the
redeemable preference shares) and all other
expenses are charged through the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income as and
when incurred. Costs incurred directly in the
arranging of new leases are capitalised and
amortised over the average lease length on the
property portfolio, Incentives paid to new
tenants and those paid or incurred in
renegotiating an existing lease are amortised
over the length of the lease being agreed.
Surrender premiums paid to tenants or incurred
by the Group following the break of a lease are
recognised immediately in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive [ncome.

E. Taxation

Current income tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or

substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Current income tax relating to items recognised
directly in equity is recognised in equity and
not in profit or loss. Positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation are periodically evaluated and
provisions established where appropriate.

Deferred income tax is provided using the
liability method on all temporary differences at
the reporting date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purpeoses.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised cnly
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, carried forward tax
credits or tax losses can be utilised. The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on
the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities. In determining the expected manner
of realisation of an asset the directors consider
that the Group will recover the value of
investment property through sale. Deferred
income tax relating to items recognised directly
in equity is recognised in equity and notin
profit or loss.

F. Investment property acquisitions

Acquisitions of investment properties are
considered to have taken place on exchange of
contracts unless there are significant conditions
attached. For conditicnal exchanges
acquisitions are recognised when these
conditions are satisfied.

G. Freehold investment properties

Freehold investment properties are initially
recognised at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration given, including transaction costs
associated with the acquisition of the
investment property.

After initial recognition, freehold investment
properties are measured at fair value, with
movements in value recognised as gains or
losses in the Consolidated Statement of

Annual Report and Financial Statements - Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited 36
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 Investments Property
st Limited

Notes to; the' Consolidated Financial Statements

forithe year endefi:31'Décémber 201t

tomprehenstve: tncora. Pair vatie 15 based
upon the market vatuations of the properties as
provided hy Jones Lang LaSalle, independent
international real estate consultants, at the
Batance Sheet date, suitably adjusted to
account for unamortised lease incentives.

H. Leasahold investinent properties

Leasehold investment properties which meet
the criteria of an investment property as
defined by IAS 40 ‘Investment Properties’ but
are heid by the Group under a finance lease,
are initially recognised at cost, being the fair
value of the consideration given together with
the discounted present value of all minimum
lease payments {ie. head lease payments).
After initial recognition, teasehold investment
properties are measured at market value with
movements in value recognised as unrealised
gains and losses in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income. Fairvalue as
disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements is based on the market valuations
of the properties as provided by Jones Lang
LaSalle, independent international real estate
consultants, as at the atance Shéet date, as
suitably adjusted for unamortised lease
incentives and the value of finance lease
obligations recognised in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

l. Non-current asset held for sale

Investment property is transferred to non-
current assets held for sale when it is expected
that the canrying amount will be recovered
principally through sale rather than from
continuing use, For this to be the case, the
property must be availabte for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such
property and its sale must be highly probable.
The sale should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification. Qn re-
classification, investment property is measured
at fair value less an estimate of costs required
to fulfilt the property szle which is the carrying
value of the property. Market value is based on

B
T L - F

the market vatiations of thesproperties as
reported by lones Lang LaSalte, independent
international real estate consultants, as at the
Balance Sheet date.

|. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at
the lower of their original invoiced vatue and
recoverable amount. Where the time value of
money is material, receivables are carried at
amortised cost. A provision for impairment of
trade receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be
abte to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or
delinguency in payments (more than 30 days
overdue) are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying
amaunt of the asset is reduced through use of
an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income. When a
trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited in the
Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

K. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash
in hand, demand deposits, and other short-
term highly iquid investments readily
convertible within three months or tess to
known amounts of cash and subject to
insignificant risk of changes in vatue,

L. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legat or constructive obligation as a
result of past events and it is probable that an

37 Anrud Report and Fifancia) Statements - Standard Life investments Property lcome Trust Limited
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2011

outftow of economic resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amounts are
capable of being reliably estimated.

M. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Preference shares, which are redeemable on a
specific date, are classified as liabilities. (see

Q)

N. Dividends

Dividend distributians to the Group's
shareholders are recognised as a liability in the
Group's consolidated

financial statements in the year in which the
dividends are approved by the Board of
Directors.

The redeemable preference shareholders are
not entitled to payment of any dividends.

0. Borrowings and interest expense

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised
at the fair value of the consideration received,
less issue costs where applicable. ARer initial
recognition, alf interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subseguently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium
on settlement. Borrowing costs are recognised
within finance costs in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income as
incurred. Finance costs relating to the
redeemable preference shares are recognised
in the Consolidated Income Statement using
the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated cash payments throughout
the expected life of the preference shares to the
net canying value of the financial liability.

P. Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value, The method of recognising the resulting
gain or loss depends an whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
50, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group documents at the inception of the
transaction the relationship between hedging

instruments and hedged items, as well as its
risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking various hedging transactions. The
Group alse documents its assessment both at
hedge inception and en an ongoing basis of
whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactiens are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
of hedged items. The effective portion of
changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income. The gains or losses

relating to the ineffective portion are
recognised in operating profit in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income,

Amounts taken to equity are transferred to
profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged
financial income or financial expenses is
recognised.

When a derivative is held as an economic
hedge for a period beyond 12 months after the
end of the reporting period, the derivative is
classified as non-current consistent with the
classification of the underlying item. A
derivative instrument that is a designated and
effective hedged instrument is classified
consistent with the classification of the
underlying hedged item.

Q. Redeemable Preference Shares

Redeemable preference shares are accounted
for as a liability in accordance with the
principles of IAS 32. The carrying value of the
redeemable preference shares is calculated as
the fair value of the proceeds received on issue
plus an accrual of a finance cost equivalent to
an annual yield of 6%. The fair value of
proceeds received on issue plus the finance
cost accrual at redemption date will equal the
price payable by the Company on redemption of
the shares. The finance cost is recorded in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income within
Finance Costs. The finance cost of the
redeemable preference shares is transferred
from the retained earnings reserve to the other
distributable reserves, as noted in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.
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Setout befow is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and faurvaiue of the Gioup's

Fnancial instruments.,

va g lwoe %

S , .. . et

financiat Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other recewables
Financial Liabilities

Bank borrowings .
Redeemabie preference shares
Interast rate swaps

e A LB e s -

R L
- - Cokrylng Anrount
2011 2010

£ £

17,825,381 21,170,716
1,632,977 1,607,101

84,238,408 84,140,896
9,041,060

6,073,698 7,394,652

A. E .:,‘.v. -'l'i ik ", - "L.;.
e fairValue
201% 2010
£ £

17,825,381 21,170,716
1,632,977 1,607,101

84,396,916 84,333,087
- 9,296,363
6,073,698 7,394,652

The fair value of the financial assets and tiabilities are included at an-estimate of the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or hquldatton sale. The following methods and assumptlons were used

to-estimate the-fair value:

- Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables are the same as falrvalue due fo the

short term maturities. gf theseinstuments, .y .

T

fiﬁ‘lﬂwl-nl\n N

- The fair value of bank borrowings is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt on similar terms and remaining maturities. The fair value
approximates their carrying values gross of unamaortised transaction costs.

- The fair vatue of the interest rate swap contract is estimated by discounting expected future
cash flows using current market interest rates and yield curve over the remaining term of the

instrument.

- The fair value of redeemable preference shares is estimated by discounting future cash flows
using rates currently availabte for debt or similar terms and remaining maturities. The carrying

value appruxlmates their fair values.
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Standard Life iInvestments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

. The following table shows an analysis of the fair values of financial instruments recognised in
the balance sheet by the level of the fair value hierarchy*:

© 31 December 2011 Level 1 tevel 2 Level 3 Total fair '

: value
+ Interest rate swaps - 6,073,698 - 6,073,698

. 31 December 2010

. Interest rate swaps - 7,394,652 - 7,394,652

- *Explanation of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
~ entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Use of a model with inputs (other than quoted prices included in level 1) that are

directly or indirectly observable market data.

Level 3 - Use of 2 model with inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The Group is not exposed to currency risk or price risk.
The Group's policy for managing the risks associated with these financial instruments is set out '
below.

‘ Credit risk

© Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to meet a commitment-that it has
entared into with the Group. In the event of default by an occupational tenant, the Group will
. suffer a rental income shortfall and incur additional related costs. The investment Manager
regularly reviews reports produced by Dun and Bradstreet and other sources to be able to
' assess the credit worthiness of the Group's tenants and aims to ensure that there are no
" excessive concentrations of credit risk and that the impact of default by a tenant is minimised.
. In addition to this, the terms of the Group's bank borrowings require that the largest tenant
. accounts for less than 20% of the Group's totai rental income, that the five largest tenants
; account for less than 50% of the Group's total rental income and that the ten largest tenants
account for less than 75% of the Group's total rental income. The maximum credit risk from the .
tenant arrears of the Group at the financial year end was £909,104 (2010: £650,526). '

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash

| and cash equivalents, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the

! counterparty bank with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying value of these instruments.

. As at 31 December 2011 £16,932,057 (2010: £20,314,459) was placed on deposit with The .

' Royal Bank of Scotland plc (*RBS"} and £893,324 (2010:£856,257) was held with Citibank. The .

. credit risk associated with the cash deposits placed with RBS is mitigated by virtue of the

' Group having a right to off-set the balance deposited against the amount'borrowed from RBS
should RBS be unable to return the deposits forany reason. Citibank is rated A-1 P-1 Negative

- by Moody's, as at the Balance Sheet date.

Annual Report and Financial Statements - Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited 40
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. Cash fowratd fair velug immm rath fek

«As describod below the Group invests cash batances with RBS.and Citibark. Thesebalances
© eipose the Group to:cash fow driterestrate risk as.the Group's income and operating cash
tlows wil be affected by moveménts in the market rate of interest, There i5.considered 10.be no
fair value Interest rate risk in regard o these balances. :

me bdnk bordwings &5 describddin noté 17 alsoexpose the Group'ta éash flow iaterestrate
-Misk. The Group's policy Ts ip- manage its cash-fiow interest rate risk using intérasy rate. swaps,

- in which the Group his agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and floating' interest

- amounts based on a notional principal amount (5ee note 13), The Group has floating rate
borrowings of £84,432,692, £72,000,000 of which has been fixed via interest rate swaps, with
the result that £12,432,692 of its borrowings remain subject to movement in market interest

* rates and to cash flow interest rate risk. See note 27 in retation to refinancing activities after
the balance sheet date.

The bank bomowings are carried at amortised cost and the Group considers this to be a tlose
approximation to fair value. The fair value of the bank borrowings is not affected by changes in
the market interest rate. The fair value of the interast rate swaps is however exposed to
changes in the market interest rate as their fair value is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows under the agreements. The accounting policy for recognising the
fair value movements in the interest rate swaps is described in note 2.3.

Trade and other receivables and trade and other payables are interest free and have setttement
 dates within one year and therefore are not consrdered to present a fair value mterest rate risk.
‘At 31 December 201‘.! if market rate |ntere5t rates had been 100 basis pomts hrgher wrth atl
other variables held constant, the profit for the year would have been £53,927 higher (2010:
£211,707 higher) as a result of the higher interest income on cash and cash equivalents as
compensated by a higher interest expense on unhedged floating rate bank borrowings. The
Capital Reserve would have been £1,406,835 higher {2010: £2,100,955 higher) as a resuit of
an increase in the fair vaiue of the derivative designated as a cash flow hedge of floating rate
berrowings.

The following tables sets out the carrying amount of the Group's financial instruments to which
an interest rate applies:

As at 31 December 2011

Weighted

, | . . aygrage

Fixed rate Varlahle rate interest rate

£ £ £

_Cash and cash equivalents - 17,825,381 0.490%
Bank borrowings : ‘ 72,000,000 ) - 6.515%
Bank borrowings ' . - 12,432,692 2,2102%

SR, il G, oo,
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

As at 31 December 2010

Weighted
average
Fixed rate Variable rate interest rate .
£ £ £
Cash and cash equivalents - 21,170,716 0.431% .
Bank:borrowings 72,000,000 - 6.515% -
 Bank:borrowings - 12,432,692 2.037%
Redeemable preference shares 9,041,060 - 6.000%

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in realising assets or

otherwise raising funds to meet financial commitments. The investment property in which the

Group invests is not traded in an organised public market and may be illiquid. As a result, the
~ Group may not be able to liguidate its investments in these properties quickly at an amount

close to their fair value in order to meet its liquidity requirements,

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial Habilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

' Year ended 31 December 2011

Ondemand 12 months 1to5years »5years Total

£ £ £ £ 3

Interest-bearing loans - 1,774,543 86,207,235 - B7,981,778

Interest rate swaps - 3,545,744 3,545,744 - 7,091,489

. Leasehold cbligations - 500 2,000 54,000 56,500
. Trade and other payables 1,087,386 - - - 1,087,386 ,
Rental deposits due to tenants - 2,368 151,456 190,203 344,028

1,087,386 5,323,155 89,906,435 244,203 96,561,181

" Year ended 31 December 2010 '

Gndemand 12 months 1to5years >5years Total |

) £ £ £ £ £

Interest-bearing loans - - 1,719,894 ° 87,872,480 - 89,592,374
Redeemable preference shares - - 10,744,800 - 10,744,800 °

! Interest rate swaps - 3,336,214 6,672,427 - 10,008,641

; Leasehold obligations - 500 2,000 54,500 57,000
. Trade and other payables . 615,638 - - - 615,638 .
, Rental deposits due to tenants - 11,750 276,619 174,180 462,549 .

! - 615,638 5,068,358 105,568,326 272_8,680 111,481,002

- The disclosed amount for interest rate swaps in the above table are the estimated net
. undiscounted cash flows.
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in order to malntain or ad}ust the caplital strunmm the Group may ad;ust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, increase or
decrease borrowings or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratla is calculated as net
debt divided by tofal capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including bank
borrowings and redeemable prefarence shares as shown in the Consolidated Balance Sheet)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2011 and at 31 December 2010 were as follows:

2011 2010

Total borrowings 84,238,408 93,181,956

s

Lesswcash and gash' equwa!éntﬁr W o ’ L ) e ?.’825 381} (21*1?0 ’?16}‘ -
Net debt 66 413 027 72 011 240
Totalequlty e o 87 255, 225 73,330,821
Totalcapltal e 153 668 252 145 342 061
Gearing ratic 43% 50%

The gearing ratio has reduced following the conversion of the Company's redeemable
preference shares into ordinary shares.

Il ' '
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

" 4. FEES

* Investment management fees

" 0On 19 December 2003 Standard Life Investments (Corporate Funds) Limited ("the Investment
- Manager") was appointed as Investment Manager to manage the property assets of the Group.

" Under the terms of the Investment Management Agreement the Investment Manager is entitled
to receive a fee at the annual-rate of 0.85% of the total assets, payable quarterly in arrears. On
1 July 2008 a supplemental agreement to the Investment Management Agreement was putin

* place to amend the fee basis to be 0.85% per annum of the total assets except where cash

" balances exceed 10% of total assets. The fee appticable to the amount of cash exceeding 10%

of total assets is aitered to be 0.20% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. The Investment

Manager has also agreed to reduce its charge to 0.75% of the total assets of the Group until

* such time as the net asset value per share returns to the launch level of 97p. This is applicable -

. from the quarter ending 31 December 2008 onwards and does not affect the reduced fee of
0.20% on cash holdings above 10% of total assets. The total fees charged for the year ended
31 December 2011 amounted to £1,319,497 (2010: £1,263,779). The amount due and
payable at the year end amounted to £333,671 excluding VAT (2010: £325,955 excluding VAT).

| Administration, secretarial and registrar fees

~ On 19 December 2003 :Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Guernsey)
Limited "(Northern Trust*} was appointed administrator, secretary and registrar to the Group.
Northern Trust is entitled to an annual fee, payable quarterly in arrears, of £65,000. Northern
Trust is also entitled to reimbursement of reasonable out of pocket expenses. Total fees
charged for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to £75,044 (2010: £76,163). The

. amount due and payable at the year end amounted to £19,750 excluding VAT (2010: £18,508
excluding VAT).

Valuer's fee

On 4 December 2007, Jones Lang LaSalle ("the Valuer"), independent international real estate
" consultants, was appointed as valuer inrespect of the assets comprising the property
:postfolio. The Valuer is entitled to an annual fee of 0.017% of the average portfolio value
calculated over the preceding quarter and a stant up fee of 0.0225% (with a minimum fee of
£2,500) of the value of each property added to the portfolio, The total valuation fees charged
.for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to £33,947 (2010: £37,936) of which
minimum fees of £7,500 (2010: £13,163) were incurred due to adding new properties to the
portfolio. The amount due and payable at the year end amounted to £7,129 excluding VAT
{2010: £6,388 excluding VAT).

Auditor's fee :

" At the year end date Ernst & Young LLP continued as independent auditor of the Group. The

- auditors fees charged for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to £38,764 (2010:

- £33,500) and relates to audit services provided for the 2011 financiat year. Ernst & Young LLP
provided non audit services in relation to the prospectus issued for the july capital raising with
fees amounting to £6,000 (2010: £nil}. Emnst & Young LLP also provided some restdency advice

- regarding the appointment of the chairman for £1,500 (2010:£nil) resulting in total non-audit
services of £7,500 (2010:£nil).
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fnterest incathe on cash and cash equivalents T 51,732
'E-“l‘nénce,in‘co};:te C N L ‘ o ' a ) ) 53,735
Interest expense on bank botrowings : 774420
Payments on interest rate swaps 3,147,947
Finance cost of redeemable preference shares (see Note 14} 300,214
Amomsation of avrangement costs (see Note 12) 97,512
Flr;arnlce costs 5.320,093
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6. TAXATION

Current income tax

R P e 4

el

91, 338 ‘
91 338 '

1,719,974

3,211,093
511,758
97,130
5,539,955

A reconciliation of the income tax charge applicable to the profit from ordinary activities at the
UK statutory income tax rate to the income tax rate charged in the Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income for the year is as follows:

Profit before income tax 4,180,116
Tax calculated at UK statutory income tax rate of 20% (2010: 20%) 836,023
Losses/ {gain) arising on investment property not subject to tax 372,995
Holding company profits not subject to tax {1,221,503)
Income not subject to tax {16,553)
Expenditure not atlowed for income tax purposes 44,447
Capital and other allowances (149,444)
Tax loss not utilised 134,035

2010
e At £

13,895,179
2,779,036
(2,141,022}
{1,165,250}
(81,848)
28,265
(212,564)
793,383

e AR A L R e e v M s ake mme e e+ m emme s s e e hhsap e e e

Current income tax charge: o S -

The Group has not recognised a deferred tax asset of £3,702,823 (2010:£€3,592,838) arising as
a result of the tax loss carrled forward, This will only be utilfsed if the Group has profits
" chargeable to income tax in the future.

" The Group has cbtained exempt company status in Guernsey so that they are exempt from
+ {tiernsey taxation on Ingome adsing outside-Guemsay and bank Hiterest reteivVablem
Buenisey. The Board intend to conduct e Sroug's affalrs such that they cotitiius fo remai

. eiugnb!e for exemptmn.
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

. 7. FREEHOLD AND LEASEHOLD INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2011
Freehold
£
Market value as at

31 December 2010 123,490,000
. Purchase of investment property 22,274,624

Capital expenditure on investment ‘
properties ' 741,331

' properties (2,661,591) (6,513)  (2,668,104)
Movement in lease incentives receivable 290,130 - 290,130

_ Investment property recategorised as
held for sale (998,000) - (998,000)

‘ Market value at 31 Decémber 2011 141,050,000 20,025,000 161,075,000
Adjustment for lease incentives (3,868,935} - (3,868,935)
Adjustment for finance lease gbligations - 6,594 6,594
Fair value at 31 December 2011 137,181,065 157,212,659 -

Carrying vatue of disposed investment
properties (2,086,494)

Valuation loss from investment

2011
Leasehold
£

31,475,000

6,513

(11,450,000}

2011
Total -

154,965,000
22,274,624

747,844

(13,536,494)

20,031,594
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Capital expenditure on
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Valuation gain from
investment properties
Transfer to freehold
dnvestment properties

Movement in lease
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incentives
Adjustment for finance

lease obligatlons

Falr value at 31 Deéehlﬁer 20‘10 7

W i »w‘ g}-é-ﬂf‘!m

o et A e

. 2010
Lagstructlon | Frazhold

v 4 ¥ £

T T e
- . 112,450,000,

3 5 !g‘, .
i
4
- 25,731,201
10,674,151 93,009
- (31,507,400)
2,525,849 3,918,727
(13,200,000) 13,200,000
o ;u o1 n35,837) S
123, 490,000
(3,578,805)
- 119,911,195

!iéu‘;‘s-

i;m;ahum
£

¥ 24,310,000

6,699,441

250

465,309

- i
x?i; fie

31 475 000

6, 594
31 481 594

A

201G

;.» o 1,314 e

" {,Zﬂloz_h
v Fater

32,430,642

10,767,410

(31,507,400)

6,909,885

(43 5,53?}' i

' 151. 965 000

(3,578,805)

" 151,392,789

Investment properties were revalued at the year end by Jones Lang LaSalle, independent
-international reat estate consultants, on the basis of the market value. In accordance with the
accounting policy in note 2.3, In order to'arrlve at fait value the market values of teasehold
investment properties have been adjusted to reflect the value of finance lease obligations. The
market value provided by Jones Lang LaSalle at the year end was £162,100,000 (2010;
£154,965,000) however an adjustment has been made for lease incentives of £3,868,935* ,
(2010: £3,578,805) that are already accounted for as an asset. The year end valuation of
£162,000,000 includes £1,025,000 in re!aﬂen to Lister House, ap investment property held for

sale (see note 8l

. Thevaipations have beer prepared in acwrdaum w;th the RICS Valua&un Standards (7th
, Edition) published by the Royal tnsmuﬂ%n prChartared Suryeyors,
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2011

. 8. INVESTMENT PROPERTY HELD FOR SALE

' As at 31 December 2011 the Group had exchanged conditienal contracts with a third party for

_ the sale of Lister House, Horforth, Leeds for a price of £1,025,000, The sale completed on

. 20 January 2012. The independently assessed market value of this property as at 31 December
2011 was £1,025,000. As at 31 December 2011 the carrying value of the investment property
held for sale is £298,000 (net of transaction costs of £27,000). No:investment property was

. held for sale at 31 December 2010.

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2011 2010

£ £

Trade receivables 961,220 1,043,760

Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (52,116) (393,234}
- Trade receivables (net) - ‘ ‘ 909,104 650,526
‘Lease incentives due within oneyear 352,187 304,831

. Rental deposits held on behalf.of tenants 344,028 462,549
VAT recoverable - 22,717 '

Other receivables 37,283 166,478

. Total trade and other receivables 1.(_542;602 1,607,101

" The estimated fair values of receivables are the discounted amount of the estimated future
, cash flows expected to be received and approximate their carrying amounts,

The trade receivables above relate to rental income receivable from tenants of the investment.
properties. When a new lease is agreed with a tenant the Investment Manager performs
money laundering checks and financial assessments to determine the tenant’s ability to fulfil -
its obligations under the lease agreement. The majority of tenants are invoiced for rental
income quarterly in advance and will be issued with invoices at least 21-days before the
relevant quarter starts. Invoices become due on the first day of the quarter and are considered
" past due if payment is not received by this date. Otherreceivables are considered past due

when the given terms of credit expire.

Receivables are considered impailred' when there is objective evidence that the fuli value of a

receivable will not be recovered. Movement in the balance considered to be impaired has been

included in other direct property costs in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

Income,

As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of £52,116 (2010: £393,234) were impaired and
provided for.

1
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As of 31 December 2011, trade recelvables of £909,104 (2010: £650,526 ) were less than 3
manths past due but not impaired.

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2011 2010
£ £
Cash held at bank 893,324 856,257
Cash held on deposit with RBS (See Note 12) * - 16,932,057 20,314, 459 ?
' 17,825, 381 21 170, 716
::, [ B .‘aii: R T e ' !‘ i .
u— hw rifiond frcengy e o IR R ol N Y wgu- e e w B

Cash held at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the applicable short-term
deposit rates.

11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2011 2010
£ £
 Trade payables 340,523 +335,080
Otherpayables . ..., . . . ‘ 265,686.. 280,558 .
VAT payable | 481,177
, Deferred rentat income . 2,865,512 2,452,370
Rentai deposits due to tenants : . 2 358 11,750
;*' - * S o T sess268 3079“753
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

. 12, BANK BORROWINGS

2011 2010

£ : £
Loan facitity and drawn down outstanding balance 84,432,692 84,432,692

. Opening carrying value 84,140,896 84,043,766
' Amortisation of arrangement costs 97,512 97,130 :
Closing carrying value 84,238,408 84,140,896 .

On 4 December 2003 the Company entered into a loan agreement (amending the agreement
on 19 July 2006 and 28 August 2009) with RBS. The facility currently available to the Company
is £84,432,692 (2009: £84,432,692) and is repayable on 29 December 2013.

. Interest is payable at a rate equal to the aggregate of 1 month LIBOR, a margin of 1.5% per
annum and the lender's mandatory costs rate-of approximately 0.01%. The all in interest rate
© on the loan drawn down at the Balance Sheet date was 2.10% (2010: 2.03%). As described in

rate being a fixed rate of 6.515% (2010: 6.515%) for the £72m portion of the loan {fixed rate
of 5.015% plus margin of 1,5%). See'note 27 in relation to refinancing activities after the
balance sheet date,

. Under the terms of the loan facillty there are certain events which would entitle RBS to

note 13, £72m of the loan facility is hedged via interest rate swaps which results in the interest

terminate the loan facility and demand repayment of all sums due. Included in these events of

, default is the financial undertaking relating to the loan to value percentage. The loan
! agreement notes that the loan to value percentage is calculated as the loan amount less the
amount of any sterling cash deposited within the security of RBS divided by the Gross Secured

Property Value, and that this percentage should not exceed 65% at any time. The loan to value .

. reference to that quarter's investment property valuation, As at 31 December 2611 the Group's

1
:
; percentage is to be calculated upon the acquisition of a new property and quarterly with
)
' loan to value percentage was as follows:

| o 2011 2010
% ‘ £ £
* Loan amount 84,432,692 84,432,692
* Cash deposited within the security of RBS {See Note 10} - (16,932,057)  (20,314,459)

67,500,635 64,118,233

Investment property valuation ' 162,100,000 154,965,000
L.oan to value percentage . ' . . 41.6% 41.4% .
. lLean to value peicéntage covenant 65.0% C 65.0%

" Loan to vatue percentage if all cash is deposited

; within the security of RBS 41.1% 40.8%
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valuation *
- that sector weightings are restricted to 55%, 45% and 45% for the ﬂt’f‘ce, Retall and
* Industrial sectors respeitively v ot i
- that the largest tenant accounts for less than 20% ofthe Group's total rental income .
- that the five largest tenants account for tess tharn 50% of thé. Group's totat rental income
~ that the ten ldrgest tenants account for less than 75% of the Group's total rental income

During the period the Group did not breach any of its loan covenants, nor did it default an any
other of its obligations under its loan agreement.

The loan facility Is secured by fixed and floating charges over the assets of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiary, Standard Life investments Property Holdings Limited.

13. INTEREST RATE SWAPS

The Company has two interest rate swap agreements with RBS. The first swap agreement was
entered into on 29 December 2004 and has an end date of 29 December 2013. Under this first
swap the Company has agreed to receive a floating Interest rate linked to 3 month tibor and
pay a fixed interest rate of 5.115%. The second swap agreement was entered into on
15 December 2008 and has an end date of 29 December 2013, Under this secand swap the
~Conpany has agreed far pav & ﬂediing [itatest faee lihked tr 3 month Libor didaciivea -~
floating interest rate linked to 1 month Libor plus a margin of 0.1%. Both agreements are for a
notional principal amount of £72,000,000. These swap agreements together qualify as a fully
effective cash flow hedge and fair value changes are shown in the other comprehensive income
in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. The £72,000,000 loan and the
interest rate swaps have the same critical terms and so the hedge is fully effective. The
effective interest rate of the combined swap agreements is 5.015% (2010: 5.015%).

R s ..x“.- [N

2011 2010

£ £

Opening fair value of interest rate swaps at 1 January (7.394,652)  {6,107,198)

Valuation gain / (loss) on Interest rate swaps S 320 954 {(1,287,454)

ao;rr;gd Fai; val:; o?lmgr;sﬁ;;t.ens;ﬁapéla‘t- 3u1 -L");:;m‘i)er T (6 073 ".693)‘ T ?7:3%':3;2)—
Interest rate swaps due: '

Less than one year (3 066,238) (2,815 665)

Between one and five years (3 007 aGO) (4 578 987)

' C!osing fair value of interes! rate swaps at 31 Deaembet . . (6,{:73 693} (?,394 652}:“ .
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

. 14. REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES

The Company issued 6,000,000 25p redeemable zero dividend preference shares
("redeemable preference shares*) at a value of £1 on 19 Deceniber 2003. The redeemable
preference shares will be redeemed:by the Company on the tenth anniversary of admission at a
redemption price of £1.7908. The redeemable preference shares cannot be redeemed earlier.

The redemption price represents a redemption yield of 6% per annum on the issue price of £1.

2011 2010
£ £
" Proceeds from issue of redeemable preference shares 6,000,000 6,000,000
Accrued finance cost charged to Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income during the year 300,214 511,758
- Accrued finance cost charged to Consolidated Statement )
, of Comprehensive Income in previous periods 3,041,060 2,529,302
* Conversion of preference shares to ordinary shares during ‘
. the year (see Note 17) (9,341,274)
- Closing liability at 31 December - 9,041,060

On 29 June 2011, an extraordinary general meeting was held which approved the conversion of
the preference shares into ordinary shares in accordance with the terms of the Circular of
Shareholders. On 21 July 2011, the redeemable preference shares were converted to ordinary

" shares. See Note 17.

15, GTHER LIABILITIES

" At 31 December 2011 the Group owned five leasehold properties at a market value of
£20,025,000 (2010: six properties at a market value of £31,475,000) as valued by the
independent valuers Jones Lang LaSalte Limited.

In accordance with the accounting policy for leasehold investment property to be carried at fair
. valuation, an adjustment is required toreftect the value of finance lease obligations.
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! Total due afterone year 6,094 6,094
! Total finance lease obligations ) 7 6594 6,594

* 16. LESSOR ANALYSIS

Lessor length

The Group has entered into leases on its property portfolio. This property portfolio as at

31 December 2011 had an average lease expiry of 7 and a half years and leases include
clauses to enable periodic upward revision of the rental charge according to prevailing market
conditions. Some leases contain options to break before the end of the lease term.

Euture mlnimum remals fe;eivabie undar. nqn—canca{tabla aperating lgasesas bt 3 December. ~

are as follows:

2011 2010
£ £
With one year 13,696,459 11,986,412
After one year, but not more than five years 30,499,495 33,356,883
More than Fve years 59 929 162 45,671,288
Total ST 104,125,116 91,014,583

'"The ldrgest single ténant at the year end accounts far 9.57% (2010: 9.20%) of the current
iannuat passing rent. . . . -

17 SHARE CAPITAL
Authoﬂsed ‘,

“Unlimited (2010 500 000 000) ord:narv shares of 1p each

e
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Allotted, called up and fully paid:

! 2011 T 2010
i
£ £
" Opening balance 6,671,438 6,671,438 :
Shares issued 21 July 2011 at a'price of 63.44p per share for
the-conversion of redeemable preference shares ' 9,341,274
+ Shares issued between 16 February 2011 and 21 July 2011 at
a price of between 64.69p and 65.00p per share 4,859,507 -
- Issue costs associated with new ordinary shares (432,208) -
* Closing balance 20,440,011 6,671,438
2011 2010

Number of N-umber of

Shares Shares

" Opening batance 114,399,999 114,399,999
Issued during the year 22,231,747 -
Closing balance 136,631,746 114,399,999

18. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

" Share premium

" On 18 March 2010 the Audit Committee approved the re-categorisation of the share premium
to other distributable reserves under the provisions of The.Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008,
Share premium or amounts above nominal value is taken against share capital as per the

- provision of The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 for all transactions after. 18 March 2010.

Retained earnings . R

This is a distributable reserve and represents the cumulative revenue earnings of the Group
less dividends declared as payable to the Company's shareholders. !

; Capital reserves

This reserve represents realised gains and losses on disposed investment properties and
unrealised valuation gains and losses on investment properties and-cash flow hedges
since the Company's launch.

QOther distributable reserves

This reserve represents the share premium raised on launch of the Company which was
subsequently converted to a distributable reserve as by special resolution dated 4 December .
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The following reftects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings pef
" share computations:

2011 2010 -
£ £
Profit for the year 4,180.116 13,895,179
2011 2010
Number of  Number of
Shares Shares
Weighted average number of ordinafy shares ‘€
.outstanding during the year : . 124 726 ??9 114 399 999 ‘
e s st S ooy e reiag e o dedpep gt S Bt fe Ty L] Dy e
.Gain per ordmary share ’ 3 35p 12 15p

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares
between the reporting date and the date of completion of these financial statements.

20. DIVIDENDS
The interim dividends paid to date in 2011 are as follows (2010: £5,205,200) :

£1,258,400 (1.1p per ordinary share) paid in February relating to the quarter ending
31 December 2010 . !
£1,269,400 (1.1p per ordinary share) pald in May relating to the quarter ending - '
31 March 2011
- £1,269,400 (1.1p per ordinary share} paid in August relating to the quarter ending '

. 30 june 2011 ‘ i
£1,548,038 (1.133p per ordinary share) pald in November relat ng to the quarter ending .
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

21.RECONCILIATION OF CONSOLIDATED NET ASSET VALUE TO PUBLISHED
NET ASSET VALUE

The net asset value attributable to ordinary shares is published quarterly and is based on the
most recent valuation of the investment properties and calculated on a basis which adjusts the
underlying reported IFRS numbers. The adjustment made is to include a provision for payment
of a dividend in respect of the quarter then ended.

2011 2010

Number of  Number of

Shares Shares .
. Number of ordinary shares at the reporting date 136,631,746 114,399,999
' 2011 2010
£ £ -
Total equity per audited consolidated financial statements 87,255,226 73,330,821
Net asset value per share ' - ' 63.9p 64.1p
Adjustments;
Provision for dividend in respect of the quarter
ending 31 December (1,548,038) (1,258,400)
Published adjusted net asset value 85,707,188 72,072,421
" Published adjusted net asset value per share 62.79 63.0p
. 22. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
i 2011 2010
: . £ £
; Profit for the year = 4,180,116 13,895,179 .
" Movement in lease incentives (242,774) 604,567
i Movement in trade and ather receivables (35,501), . 1,228 -
. I
Movement in trade and other payables 739,865  (953,107) '
Finance costs ' 5,320,093 5,539,955
Finance income (51,732) (91,338)
Valuation toss /(gain) from investment properties 2,668,104 (6,909,885} .
Profit on disposal of investment.properties (612,645) (3,795,227}
" Cash-generated from operations 11,965,530 8,291,372
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in the Consutidated Cash Flaw Statement, procesds rmm digposal of mvestment propertiés
comprlse.

v : © C am
Carrying vaiue of d:spusedlnvestment properties (Note e © 13,536,694 31,507,400
‘Moveientin rade and otherpayables’ * <1 « [ C <o o 926500 1 ¢ 23,7000
Profit on disposal of investmentiproperties T 12,685 i 3,798,227
Proceeds from disposal ofmvestmeat propertles oo “1‘;375‘;_63‘9'35—325 "32? !
23. SERVICE CHARGE

The Group has appointed a managing agent to deal with the sen.rlce charge at the investment
properties.

A summary of the service charge during the year Is as follows:

2011 2010
£ £
Total service charge expenditure incurred 7 ‘ 853,365 1,083,168
Tatat service cha:ge billed to tenants . 840,369 1 +238,952
'-Semce charge “biifed to the Group in respect 6? '.rgsd unlts T h{9}£08 = 6;2'(6;“; f ) )
Serwce charge due ta tenants as at 31 December (1 84.&12) (382.103]

853,365 1 083 168

The service charge in respect of void units of £197,408 (2010: £226,319) is included as an
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 27.

24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Redeemable preference shares - - - - ] ' <

On 19 Decemiber 2003 the Company issued 6,000,000 25p redeemable zero dividend
preference shares for £6,000,000 to The Standard Life Assurance Company. On 10 july 2006
these shares were transferred to Standard Life Assurance Limited. These shares have a nominal.
value of £1,500,000 and are redeemable by the Company on the tenth anniversary of
admission at'a redémption price of £1.7908 . These shares do not carry any voting rlghts See
Note 14. On 29 June 2011, an extraordinary generat meeting was held which approved the

convgrsion of the preference shares.into ordinary shares in accordance with the terms ofithe, ..

Circuiar to Shareholders On 21 luly 2011, thd redeemable oreference shares were cnnvenad to
ordinary shares. See Note 1? ‘
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

" Ordinary share capital
" Standard Life Investment Funds Limited held 14,982,501 of the issued ordinary shates at the
" ‘Balance Sheet date on behalf of its Unit Linked Property Funds (2010: 16,644,609). This

equates to 11.0% (2010: 14.5%) of the ordinary share capital in issue at the Balance Sheet
date. Standard Life Assurance Limited held 14,724,580 of the issued ordinary shares at the

* batance sheet date on behalf of its heritage with profits fund-(2010: £nil). This equates to
10.8% (2010: 0%} of the ordinary share capital in issue at the balance sheet date, Nelther

Standard Life Investments Fund Limited or Standard Life Assurance Limited are considered to

" exercise control of the Group individually or together. Those parties related to the Investment

Manager waived their rights to commission on the initial purchase of these shares in order to
maintain the fairness of the transaction to all parties.

. Directors remuneration

2011 2010

£ £

' David Moore (resigned as chairman 24 May 201 1) 24,955 26,875
. Richard Barfield ' 22,500 20,625
~ john Hallam {resigned 30 June 2010) - 9,375
. Saliy-Ann Farnon (appointed 30 June 2010} 22,500 11,250
Shelagh Mason - 22,500 20,625

- Paul Orchard-Lisle (appointed chairman 24 May 2011) 26,260 20,625

118,715 109,375

Diractors expenses 3,412 2,716

122,127 112,091

David Moore is a partner of Mourant Ozannes Advocates and Notaries Public {Guernsey) who are:

the Group's solicitors. As at 31 December 2011, the fees paid during the year to Mourant
Ozannes Advocates and Notarles Public {Guernsey) were £28,161 (2010: £1,252).

Investment Manager

Standard Life Investments {Corporate Funds) Limited is the Investment Manager. Transactions
with the Investment Manager in the year are detailed in.note 4.

25, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

| The board has considered the requirements of IFRS 8 'operating segments'. The board is of the
. view that the Group is engaged in a single segment of buslness, being property investment and
. in.one geographical area, the United Kingdom.

26. COMMITMENTS

" As at 31.December 2011, the Group had exchanged conditional contracts with third parties and

is committed to sell Lister House, Leeds for £1.025m {2010: £nil).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had agreed heads of terms with RBS for a new loan facullty
of £84,432,692 with a maturity date.of 16 December 2018, See note 27.

!
L
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@n 1 }anaaw 201 2 one nfthe Group's sharehu!ders. Siandard Life Investment Funds Limited
(see note 24), transferred its assets to Standard Life Assurance Limited.

4
.- Of 20 Januaiy 7017 the Gmup comfipleted ihie sale of Lisrer‘ Hause an office investmet In 7
Leeds for £1.025m. ‘J- T Loy
On 20 Januaty 2012 the Company completed the drawdown of £84,432,692 loan with RS and
simultaneously repaid the old loan Facility. The new facility is repayable on 16 December 2018.
Interest is payable at a rate equal to the aggregate of 1 month Libor, a margin of 1 65% (below
40% LTV} or 1.75% (40% to 60% L¥V inctusive) or 1.95% (above 60% LTV).

Under the terms of the loan facility there are certain events which wauld entitle RBS to
terminate the loan facility and demand repayment of all sums due. Included in these events of
default is the financial undertaking relating to the loan to value percentage. The lvan
agreement notes that the toan to value percentage is calculated as the loan amount less the
amount of any sterling cash deposited within the security of RBS divided by the gross secured
property value, and that this percentage should not exceed 65% for the first five years and then
60% from the fifth anniversary to maturity. The arrangement fee for the new facility is £675,462
.which was paid to RBS on signing of the heads of terms-on 22 December 2011, Further directly
attributable transaction costs of £116,538 are to be Incurred and have not been accoisnted for
as at the balance sheet date. The new loan facility took effect on 20 ]anuary 2012 whlch is why
the.transaction.wag not rem;d,ed at, thembgﬁance sheet dago.r-x B o T h e g el

Cn 20 jJanuary 2012 the Company completed an interest rate swap of a notional amount of
£12,432,692 with RBS. This interest rate swap has a maturlty of 16 December 2018, Under the
swap the Company has agreed to receive a floating interest rate linked to 3 month Libor and
pay a fixed interest rate of 1.77125%.

On 20 January 2012 the Company completed an interest rate swap of a notionat amount of
£72,000,000 with RBS, This interest rate swap effective date is 30 December 2013 anda
maturity date of 16 December 2018. Under the swap the Company has agreed to receive a
floating interest rate tlinked to 3 month Libor and pay a fixed interest rate of 2.0515%."

On 24 February 2012 a dividend of £1,548,038 (2010: £1,258,400) in respect of the quarter to
31 December 2011 was pald

1

Rk tn e




SLIPIT 2.QXP:SLIPIT 23/03/2012 10:28 Page 60

Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Information for Investors

Shareholders who hold their shares In
certificated form can check their shareholding
with the Registrars.

Notifications of changes of address and all
enquiries regarding certificates or dividend
chegues should be sent in writing to the
Registrars.

Share Information

The Company’s shares are listed on the London
Stock Exchange and the share price is quoted
daily in the Financial Times,

Details of the Company may also be found on
the Investment Manager's website which can be
found at:
www.standardlifeinvestments.com/its, af
Interactive Investor Investment Trust Service,
website address: www.iii.co.uk and on TrustNet,
website address: www.trustnet.co.uk.

Ordinary shares may be purchased or sold
directly through a stockbroker or through your
bank, solicitor, accountant, or other
professional adviser or through the Company's
Registrars or the Company’s Savings Plan and
Individual Savings Account, details of which are
shown at the back of this report.

The net asset value per ordinary share is
calculated on a quarterly basis and is published
on the London Stock Exchange where the latest
live ordinary share price is also displayed,
subject to a delay of 15 minutes. “SU" is the
code for the ordinary shares which may be
accessed at www.londonstockexchange.com,

Other Information

The Company is a member of the Association of
investment Companies. The Association
publishes a Monthly Information Service which
contains a wide range of detailed infermation
including statistical and performance data on
all its members. A sample copy can be
obtained free of charge from The AIC, 9th Floor,
24 Chiswell Street, London, EC1Y 4YY
{telephone: 020 7282 5555) along with full
details of other publications available from the
Association. Alternatively, visit their website on
www.theaic.co.uk,
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Hcf!.w to Make Fu;tt.!.i’e !ﬁvestme‘hts‘

Intraduction
Investors may subscribe to Standard Life investments Property Income Trust Limited through
Standard Life’s Savings Scheme, individual Savings Account (15A7 or Individual Saving

Account transfer {(1SA fransfar). Alternatively, investors may buy shares in the Company directly
through a stockbroker or indirectly through a lawyer, accountant or financiat adviser.

Investment Trust Savings Schems

Standard Life's Savings Scheme is a straightforward way to invest in the Standard Life
Investments Property'Income Trust Limited. The minimum investment through Standard Life's
Savings Scheme is £100 per month or a £1,000 lump sum. A commission payment to a
financial adviser of up to 3% of each investment may also be deducted at an investor's
request. There is no maximum amount that can be invested in the Company through Standard
Life’s Savings Scheme and there is no initial or annual management charge.

Investment Trust ISA ;

Standard Life's stocks and shares ISA Is a tax efficient savings vehicle as investors pay no
additional income tax or capital gains tax on any money generated by their investments.
Investors can invest in the Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited through the
Stocks and Shares ISA. Investors have the opportunity to Invest up to £10,680 up until 5 Aprit
2012 and up to £11,280 thereafter when they subscribe to a Stocks and Shares ISA. As with
Standard Life's Savings Scheme, the minimum investment in Standard Life's 1SA is a £1,000
lump sum or £100 per month. There is no initlal or annual management charge. ISA attract tax
relief’s which the Government may change in the future. The value of these retiefs to each
investor depends on their own personal circumstances.

investment Trust ISA Transfer

Investors may also gain access to the Company by transferring any existing ISA (including a
former PEP ‘Personal Equity Plan®) investments to a Standard Life 15A. As with the Standard Life
ISA there is no initiat or annual management charge.

How to invest

For further information on how to invest and an apptication pack containing full details of the
products and their charges, please call Standard Life Investments on 0845 60 24 247, Lines
are open from %am to 5pm Monday to Friday. .

For information on Standard Life Investments’ range of Investment Trusts and Standard Life's
vigws on the markets, ptease call 0845 60 60 062.

This is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold shares in Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited. Shareholders who are unsure of what action to take should contact a
financial adviser autherisad under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. Shares values
may go down as weli as up which way result in a shareholder receiving less that he/she
originally invested.
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

How to Make Future Investments (continued)

Risk Warnings - General

e Past performance is no guarantee of future performance.

o The value of your investment and any income from it may go down as well as up and you may
not get back the amount invested. This is because the share price is determined by the
changing conditions in the market in which the Company invests and by the supply and demand
for the Company’s shares.

® As the shares in an investment trust are traded on a stockmarket, the share price will fluctuate
in accordance with supply and demand and may not reflect the underlying net asset value of
shares; where the share price is less than the underlying value of the assets, the difference is
known as the ‘discount’. For these reasons, investors may not get back the original amount
invested.

¢ Investors should note that tax rates and reliefs may change at any time in the future.

o The value of ISA and PEP tax advantages will depend on personal circumstances. The favourabie
tax treatment of PEPs and ISAs may not be maintained.
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Notlce of Anhual General'Meeting:

Notice Is hereby given that the' Eighth Ahnidaf General Meéting of Standard Life Investments
Property Income Trust Limited {“thé Company™) will be held at Trafalgar Court, Les Banques,
5t Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 3QL, Channel Islands on 15 May 2012 at 9:00 AM for the following

purposes:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions

Resolution 1

Resolution 2

Resolution 3

Resolution 4

To recelve and approve the Annual Report and Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2011,

To re-elect Ernst & Young LLP as Auditor of the Company until
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

To authorise the Board of Directors to determine the
remuneration of the Auditor.

To re-elect Richard Barfield as a Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thaught fit, pass the following resolutions as special resolutions

Resolution 5

63 Anmsat Report and Finandlal Statinents - Staridard Life vestrients Praperdy bnéome Trust Liriited

a)

b)

¢}

To authorise the Company, in accordance with The Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 2008, as amended (the “Law™) to make market
acquisitions of its Ordinary Shares of 1p each (either for
retention as treasury shares for future resale or transfer or
cancellation) provided that;

the maximum number of Ordinary Shares hereby authorised to
be purchased shali be 14.99 per cent of the issued Ordinary
Shares on the date on which this resolution is passed;

the minimum price which may be paid for an Ordinary Share
shall be 1p:

the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid
for an Ordinary Share shal! be the higher of (i) 105 per cent of
the average of the middle market quotations (as detived from
the Daily Official List of the Londor Stock Exchange) for the
Ordinary Shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date af acquisitien and (ii} the higher of the {ast
independent trade and the highest current independent bid on
the tradlng venue on which the purchase is camried out; and

1 . .
i i
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notice of Annual General Meeting {continued)

0}

Resolution 6

(a)

(b)

SPECIAL BUSINESS

unless previously varied, revoked or renewed, the authority
hereby conferred shall expire on 15 November 2013 or, if
earlier, at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in 2013, save that the Company may, prior
to such expiry, enter into a contract to acquire Ordinary Shares
under such authority and may make an acquisition of Ordinary
Shares pursuant to any such contract.

That the Directors of the Company be and they are hereby
generally empowered, to allot Ordinary Shares in the Company
or grant rights to subscribe for, or to convert securities into,
Ordinary Shares in the Company {("equity securities"}, including
the grant of rights to subscribe for, or to convert securities into
Ordinary Shares held by the Company as treasury shares for
cash as if any pre-emption rights in relation to the issue of
shares as set out in the listing rules made by the Financial
Services Authority under part VI of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000 (as amended) did not apply to any such
allotment of equity securities, provided that this power:

expires at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company after the passing of this resolution or on the expiry
of 15 months from the passing of this resolution, whichever is
the earlier, save that the Company may, before such expiry,
make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity
securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may
allot equity securities in pursuance of any such offer or
agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired;
and

shall be limited to the allotment of equity securities up to an
aggregate nominal value £136,631 being approximately 10 per
cent of the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company, as at 23 March 2012.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a special resolution

Resolution 7

That in accordance with Section 18 of the Companies
(Transitional Provisions} Regulations, 2008 the first sentence of
paragraph 5 of the Company's existing Memorandum of
Incorporation be deleted in its entirety.

for and on behalf of

Northern Trust International Fund Administration
Services (Guernsey) Limited
Secretary

23 March 2012
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust leated

Notice of Annual Gen'era_lféMégi_ings.fjr:GMinued)

Wotes 1. Aform of proxy is enclosed with this notice. A Shareholder
entitted to attend, speak and vote is entitled to appoint one.or
more proxies-to exercise alt or any of his rights te attend, speak
and vote at the Meeting. A proxy need not be a Shareholder of
the Company. If you wish to appoint a person other than the
Chairman of the Meeting, please insert the name of your chosen
proxy hotder in the space provided on the enclosed form of
proxy.

2, in the case of jeint holders such persons shali not have the right
to vote individually in respect of an Ordinary Share but shall
elect one person to represent them and vote in person or by
proxy in their name. In defautt of such an election, the vote of
the person first named in the register of members of the
Company tendering a vote will be accepted to the exclusion of
the votes of the other joint holders.

3. You may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is
appointed to exercise rights attached to different Crdinary
Shares. You may not appoint more than one proxy to exercise
rights attached to any one Ordinary Share. To appoint more
than one proxy you may photacopy the enclosed form of proxy.
é Please indicate the proxy holder's name and the number of ?

i Ordinary Shares in relation to which they are authorised to act
as your proxy (which, in aggregate, should not exceed the
number of Qrdinary Sharas held by you). Please also indicate if
the praxy instruction is one of multiple instructions given by
you. All hard copy forms of proxy must be signed and should be
returned together in the same envelope.

4. The form of proxy should be completed and sent, together with
the power of attorney or authority (if any) under which it is
signed, or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority,
50 as to reach Computershare Investor Services (Jersey) Limited,
The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 6ZY no later than
9.00AM on 13 May 2012,

5. Completing and returning a form of proxy will not prevent a
member from attending the Meeting in person. If you have
appointed a proxy and attend the Meeting in person your proxy
appointment will remain valid and you may not vote at the
Meeting unless you have provided a hard copy notice to revoke
the proxy to Computershare Investar Services (Jersey} Limited,
The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 6ZY not later than
9.00AM on 13 May 2012.

6. To have the right to attend, speak and vote at the Meating {and
also for the purposes of catculating how many votes-a member ;
may cast on a poll) a8 member myst first have his or her name
entetad on.thé registerof members not latarthan 9.00AM en. :
13:May 2012. Changes tp entries in thesegister afterthal tUme: i
sirailbé olsregdidealtn detetiting thie'dghts of antj memberto k
attend, speak ant wite ot buch Meeting, “

P
T
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

10.

11.

12.

13.

The Directors' letters of appointment will be available for
inspection for fifteen minutes prior to the Meeting and during
the Meeting itself.

By attending the Meeting a holder of Ordinary Shares expressly
agrees they are requesting and willing to receive any
communications made at the Meeting.

If you submit more than one valid form of proxy, the form of
proxy received tast before the latest time for the receipt of
proxies will take precedence. If the Company is unable to
determine which form of proxy was last validly received, none of
them shall be treated as valid in respect of the same,

A quorum consisting of one or more Sharehotders present in
person, or by proxy, and holding five per cent or more of the
voting rights is required for the Meeting. If, within half an hour
after the time appointed for the Meeting, a quorum is not
present the Meeting shall be adjourned for seven days at the
same time and place or to such other day and at such other
time and place as the Board may determine and no notice of
adiournment need be given at any such adjourned meeting.
Those Shareholders present int person or by proxy shail
constitute the quorum at any such adjourned meeting.

The resclutions to be propesed at the Meeting will be proposed
as ordinary and special resolutions which, to be passed, must
receive the support of a majority (in the case of the ordinary
resolutions) and not less than seventy five per cent {in the case
of the special resolutions) of the total number of votes cast for,
or against, the ordinary and special resolutions respectively.

As at 23 March 2012, the latest practicable date prior to
publication of this document, the Company had 136,631,746
ardinary shares in issue with a total of 136,631,746 voting
rights.

Any person holding 3% of the total voting rights in the Company
who appoints a person other than the Chairman as his proxy will
need to ensure that both he and such third party complies with
their respective disclosure obligations under the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules.
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Standard Life investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Directors and Company information

Uirectors

Registered Office

Administrator, Secretary
& Registrar

Registered Number

Investment Manager

Independent Auditors

Solicitors

Principal Bankers

Property Valuers

Paul David Orchérd-!.iste {BE {Chairman)
David Christopher Moore

Richard Arthur Barfield

Sally-Ann-Farnon

Shelagh Yvonne Mason

Trafalgar Court
Les Banques

5t. Peter Por?
Guernsey GY1 3QL

Northern Trust International Administration
Services {(Guernsey) Limited

Trafalgar Court

Les Banques

St. Peter Port

Guernsey GY1 3QL

41352

Standard Life Investments (Corporate Funds) Limited
1 George Street
Edinburgh EH2 2LL

Ernst & Young LLP
Royal Chambers
St julian's Avenue
St Peter Port

Guernsey

GY1 4AF

Dickson Minto W.S. Mourant Ozannes
16 Chariotte Square PO Box 186
Edinburgh EH2 4DF 1 Le Marchant Street

St Peter Port
Guernsey GY1 4HP

The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc
135 Bishopsgate
London £C2M 3UR

jones Lang Lasatle Limited
22 Hanover Square
London W1A 2BN
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Life ir fta Limited is registered in Scotland (SC123321) al 1 George Street, Edinburgh EH2 2L,

The Standard Life | s group di Life Investments (Mutual Funds} Limited. SLTM Limted, Standard Life Investments (Corporate Funds) Limited. SL Capital Partners
LLP and AIDA Capital Limited. Standard Life Investments Limited acis a8 Investment Manager for Standard Life Assurance Limited and Standard Lifa Pension Funds Limided.

Standard Lifa Assyranca Limied is registered in Scotland {SC286833) at Standard Life House, 30 Lothian Road, Edinburgh EHY 20H.

Alf companies are al ised arxl regulated by the Financial Services Authority.
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing
Financial Statements for each year which give a
true and fair view, in accordance with the
applicable Guernsey law and Intemnational
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union, of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the profit or lass of the Group
for that year. In preparing those Financial
Statements, the Directors are required to:

* Select sultable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

® Make judgements and estimates that are
reascenable and prudent;

o State whether applicable accounting
standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures
disclosed and explained in the Financial
Statements; and

& Prepare the Financial Statements on a going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Group will continue’in -~
business.

The Directors confirm that they have
compliedwith the above requirements in
preparing the Financial Statements.

The Directors are responsibie for keeping
proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financiat
position of the Group and to enable them to
ensure that the Financial Statements comply
with The Companies {Guernsey) Law, 2008,
They are also responsible for safeguarding the-
assets of the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud, error and non compliance
with law and regulations.

The maintenance and integrity of the
Company's website is the responsibility of the
Directors; the work carried out by the auditors
does not involve considerations of these
matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept
no responsibility for any change that may have
occurred to the Financial Statements since they
were initially presented on the website.
Legislation in Guernsey governing the
preparation and dissemination of the financial
statements may differ from legistation in other
jurisdictions.

Responsibility Statement of the
Directors’ in respect of the
Consolidated Annual Report

The Directars each confirm to the best of their
knowtedge that:

{a) the Consolidated Financial Statements,
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and net return of the
Group; and

(b} the Annual Report includes a fair review of
the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group,
together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties faced.

Approved by the Board on 23 March 2012.

Paul Orchard-Lisle
Chairman

Sally-Ann Farnon
Director
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Directors’ Report {continued)

Memarandum of Incorporation (resolution 7)

Resolution 7 as set out in the notice of the
Annual General Meeting proposes an
amendment to the Memorandum of
Incorporatton to take account of changes
introduced by the Companies (Guernsey) Law
2008 which removes the requirement for the
Company to have authorised share capital.

A copy of the new Memorandum of
Incorporation will be available for inspection at
the offices of Dickson Minto W.S. 20 Primrose
Street, London EC2A 1EW during normal
working hours on any weekday (Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays excepted) from
the date of the notice of the AGM until the
conclusion of the AGM and on the date of the
AGM frem 15 minutes prior to the AGM until the
conclusion of the AGM.

The Directors believe that the resclutions being
put to the shareholders at the AGM are in the
best interests of the shareholders as a whole.
Accordingly the Directors unanimously
recommend that Sharehotders vote in favour of
the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM.

Approved by the Board on 23 March 2012

Paul Orcharg-Lisle
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Chairman's Statement

Paul Orchard-Lisle
Chairman

As anticipated in my predecessor’s statement
last year, performance 'n the property sector
during 2911 was driven by income. Standard
Life Investments Property Income Trust has
been successful in this regard, resulting in an
uplift of 3.1% in the fully covered dividend paid
to investors in the year.

A number of Initiatives have combined to make
this possible: we have worked with tenants ta
help them meet their rental obligations, we
have sought to regear leases with short term
expiries and breaks, and we have improved the
guality of the property portfalio by some sales
and purchases.

While this is good progress, the Company was
not immune from the general fluctuations in the
market, and its impact on our financial
performance is set out betow,

STRATEGY

Our focus Is to provide investors with a
rewarding income return that produces a fully
covered dividend.

In 2011, our investment strategy was to protect
and where possible to enhance income. To do
50, we disposed of a small number of assets
that seemed unlikely to contribute positively in
the short to medium term and we acquired
athets that offer immediate security of income
and the prospect of growth in years to come,
This repositioning of elements of the portfolio
inevitably meant that disposals completed
ahead of purchases at times left us with more
cash than is desirable, and indeed that was the
position at year end,

As is set out both below and in the Investment
Manager's report, we have also sought certainty
and flexibility by rearranging the Company’s
principal debt, and | believe that the terms
agreed with RBS for so doing are greatly to
shareholders’ advantage. We also simplified the
capital structure by converting the zero dividend
preference shares into ordinary shares.

KEY ACTIVITY [N 2011

Two properties were sold during the year, for a
total of £14.4m, and a further property was sald
after the year end for £1.0m. Funds were
invested in three new properties during the
course of the year at a total cost of £22,2m and
| am pleased to say that all are showing signs
that they will perform at least in line with our
expectations.

0n the occupational side, we, alongside many
other funds, suffered from the unexpected
failure of Focus {DIY) Ltd. Of the two properties
let to the company, ane was relet immediately,
whilst the other is still vacant, but we hava
achieved an improved planning consent.

At year end, our void rate was 5.1% versus the
IPD Monthly index rate of 10%. Much progress
has been made with agreements with tenants
whose leases will expire or have break ¢lauses
during 2012 and 2013, and | am pleased to
report that we have secured 78% of the rent at
risk over this period already, giving greater
certainty of future income to the Company.
Preliminary discussions with other tenants
suggest that we should be able to reach
satisfactory settlements on some of the major
lease expiries and breaks in 2014 during the
course of this year.
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

BORROWINGS

Since ingeption, the Company has had use of a
gebt package of £84m, with £72m fixed with an
Interest rate swap plus a margin until December
2013 and £12m at LIBOR plus a margin. The
Board and lnvestment Managers have for some
time held the view that given current market
sentiment, it was important to the future
management and growth of the portfolio to
secure longer term certainty. After securing
competitive bids, the Board accepted an offer
from RBS, more details of which are contained
fn the Investment Managar’s report. The [egal
documentation was completed early in the New
Year, and | believe the result is to achieve the
level of certainty and flexibility needed to assist
the fund’s performance even though in the
short term we will need to work hard to cover
the anticipated dividend fuily.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Net Asset Value

At the end of the year, the NAY per share was
62.7p, approximately 0.5% below that recorded
at 31 December 2010. The maovement compares
favourably with our peer group’s performance
but falls short of our ambitions. It is however
worth noting that a number of our properties
are subject to short term ieases and while these
can generate opportunities for enhancement,
vaiuers tend to take a conservative approach to
their assessment.

Set out below is an analysis of the movement in
the NAV per share aver the year.

of vpening
lvilue

- Published NAV as at .
63.0

31 December 2010 __loog
Decrease in valuation of

property partfoli (1.6} (2.5
Increase in interast rate

SWAP valuation 1.0 1.6
Other reserve movements 03 0.4
Published NAV as at

31 December 2011 &7 95.5

The net asset value is calculated under
International Financial Reporting Standards and
inciudes a provision for the payment of the
fourth interim dividend of 1.133p per share for
the quarterto 31 December 201 1.

Earnings and Oividend

Buring 2011, the Company paid total dividends
of 4.433p pershare. This represents a 3.1%
increase on dividends pald in 2010, excluding
the special dividend paid in February 2010
relating to 2009.

The Board increased the quarterly dividend by
3% to 1.133p per share with effect from the
quarter ended 30 September 2011, Dividends
payable in respectt of the Company’s financial
year are shown in the table below.

2010 Pence .

pe share

Interim dividend paid in May for

quarter ending 3t March 1.100 1.100

Interim dividend paid in August

for quarter ending 30 june 1.100 1.100

Interim dividend paid in November o

for quarter ending 30 September  1.133 1,100

Interim dividend paid in February )

for quarter ending 31 December 1.133 1.100
S A 4o

The Board has always targeted a high level of
dividend cover and continues to beljeve that
this is an appropriate discipline for the
Company to follow.

Loan to valie ratio

At 3t December 2011 the LTV ratio {(assuming
all cash placed with RBS as an offset to the lgan
balance) was 41.1%. The Board is targeting the
LTV to remain in the range of 35% to 45%.
Under the terms of the new loan facility, the
maximum LTV covenant level is 65% for the first
five years of the facility, reducing to 60% for the
last twa years.
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Standard Life Investments Property
Income Trust Limited

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Share Price

At 31 December 2611 our share price was
51.75p, showing a discount of 17.5% to NAY,
and a fall of 20.1% on the price at the end of
20140.

While disappointing in ahsolute terms, |
consider the price reflected market conditions
at that time.

At the time of our Board meeting on 13 March
2012, the share price had recovered ground
and stood at 63.00p, an increase of 21.7%
since the year end.

Dividend Yield

At the share price of 63.00p, our dividend
gives investors a return of 7,2% which | believe
to be extremely attractive, nat least when

contrasted with that obtainable from overnight
bank deposit rates of less than 1% and 10 year
government gilt vields of around 2%.

CORPORATE GOVERANCE

The membership of the Board remained
unchanged during the year. | accepted the
privitege of succeeding David Moore as
Chairman on 24 May 2011,

During the year we have, as usual, completed a
review of the performance of the Beard (both
collectively and individually). We also
established and held meetings of formally
canstituted Nomination, Remuneration, and
Management Engagement Committees. The
Audit Committee continued its work under the
firm chairmanship of Susie Famon, The
Valuation Committee completed reviews of our
Independent Valuer's reports and held
meetings with them to obtain a full
understanding of their approach to the
portfolio.

OUTLOOK

| belleve the company Is well positioned to
maintain an attractive income flow. There needs
to be sustained positive growth in the UK
economy before we can expect commerciat
property values to rise materially. In the mean-
while, good fund management, astute estate
and asset management should praduce
positive resuits.

| believe that during 2012 we will see some
warthwhile opportunities to invest further in the
market, but we will only make acquisitions
where we are kappy with the stability and
prospects of an asset.

On a more aspirational note and longer term

basis, the Board holds the view that with the

heip of our managers, it should seek the added

flexibility and enhanced market share that

would flow from the fund’s net assets

exceeding £100m, and we will seek attractive é

Paul Orchatd-Lisle C8
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